
  City of Nevada City 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  REVISED

THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2020 1:30 PM 
Council Chambers – City Hall 

317 Broad Street - Nevada City, CA  95959 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
•AUDIENCE MEMBERS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE PLANNING COMMISSION ON ITEMS ON THE
AGENDA:  After recognition by the Chair, state your name, address and your comments or questions.  Please direct your
remarks to the Commission.  So that all interested parties may speak, please limit your comments to the item under discussion.
All citizens will be given the opportunity to speak, consistent with Constitutional rights.  Time limits are at the discretion of the
Chair.  •If you challenge the Commission’s decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you
or someone else specifically raised or delivered in writing to the Planning Commission at or prior to the meeting.  •Requests
for disability-related modifications or accommodations may be made by contacting the City Planner and should be made at
least 72 hours prior to the meeting.
__________________________________________________________________________________________

Mission Statement 
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town character 

 and historical architecture while providing quality public services 
 for our current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL Chair Josie Andrews, Vice-Chair Jason Rainey Commissioners, Peter Van Zant, Stuart Lauters, 
and David Bohegian 

APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES  

1. December 19, 2019 Meeting

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments on items not on the agenda are welcome and are limited to 
three minutes.  However, action or discussion by the Commission may not occur at this time.  

DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ITEMS 

2. City-wide Crosswalk Design Consideration

SIGN APPLICATION

None

TREE REMOVAL

None

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW

3. 224 Church Street

4. 632 Zion Street- New Primary Dwelling

5. Ellen Sargent Plaque Proposal

PUBLIC HEARING

6. National Hotel Sign Variance (Request to continue to a future meeting – Will re-notice)

CANNABIS BUSINESS APPLICATIONS 

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS –Previously approved projects – informational only 



February 20, 2020  PC 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF APPROVALS AND DETERMINATIONS – (for information only): 

519 Coyote Street – Side porch enclosure 
214 Reward St.  – Auxiliary Generator 
519 Nimrod St. – Tree Removal (one Oak) 
332 Jordan  St. – Tree Removal (one Pine-dead) 
222 Park Ave.  – Tree Removal (one Maple) 
200 Clay Street – Re-roof, like-for-like 
320 Woodpecker – Re-roof, like-for-like 

CORRESPONDENCE: 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

Next Regular Meeting – February 20, 2020 

ADJOURNMENT  



  City of Nevada City 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES 
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2019 1:30 PM 

Council Chambers – City Hall 
317 Broad Street - Nevada City, CA  95959 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
•AUDIENCE MEMBERS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE PLANNING COMMISSION ON ITEMS ON THE 
AGENDA:  After recognition by the Chair, state your name, address and your comments or questions.  Please direct your 
remarks to the Commission.  So that all interested parties may speak, please limit your comments to the item under discussion.  
All citizens will be given the opportunity to speak, consistent with Constitutional rights.  Time limits are at the discretion of the 
Chair.  •If you challenge the Commission’s decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues you 
or someone else specifically raised or delivered in writing to the Planning Commission at or prior to the meeting.  •Requests 
for disability-related modifications or accommodations may be made by contacting the City Planner and should be made at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
          Mission Statement 

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town character 
 and historical architecture while providing quality public services 

 for our current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL Chair Josie Andrews, Vice-Chair Jason Rainey Commissioners, Peter Van Zant, Stuart Lauters, and 
David Bohegian 

APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES   

1. November 21, 2019  

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to approve the minutes as presented 
Seconded by D. Bohegian 
Vote:      3  ayes,     0    noes,  1 absent (Lauters),   1 abstention (Rainey),   motion carries 

 

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments on items not on the agenda are welcome and are limited to three 
minutes.  However, action or discussion by the Commission may not occur at this time.  

See video record 

SIGN APPLICATION 

None 

TREE REMOVAL 

2. 9 Kidder Inn Town Campground – Request to remove five trees 

Public: See video record 
Motion by P. Van Zant to approve the tree removal as presented 
Seconded by J. Rainey 
Vote:      4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),   motion carries 
3. 555 Nevada- Request to remove one tree (two previously approved by staff) 

Public: None 
Motion by J. Rainey to approve the tree removal as presented  
Seconded by D. Bohegian  
Vote:      4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),   motion carries 



December 19, 2019  PC 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

4. 210 Park Avenue – Request to remove three trees 

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to approve the tree removal as presented 
Seconded by J. Rainey 
Vote:      4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),   motion carries 
 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 

5. 224 Main Street- Repair and replace gutter; Repair and replace portico 

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to approve the  application as presented 
Seconded by D. Bohegian  
Vote:      4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),   motion carries  
Liaison to review gutter profile: P. Van Zant 

 

HISTORICAL PLAQUE PROPOSAL 

6. Calanan Park- Revised plaque proposal honoring Ellen Sargent 

Public: See video record 
Motion by D. Bohegian to continue to a future meeting with direction to the applicant to add language that 
strengthens understanding of Ellen Sargent’s role in the suffrage movement 
Seconded by P. Van Zant 
Vote:      4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),   motion carries  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. ADU Ordinance Update 

Public: See video record 
Motion by J. Rainey recommending to City Council that Draft Ordinance 2019-XX is Exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15282(h) ,15303, 15305, and 
15061 
Seconded by P. Van Zant  
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
 
Motion by J. Rainey recommending to City Council that they adopt Draft Ordinance 2019-XX to amend 
Section 17.72.020 through Section 17.72.038, as amended by the Planning Commission,  in order to update 
the City’s Ordinance pertaining to Accessory Dwelling Units in compliance with adopted State legislation 
Seconded by P. Van Zant 
Vote:       4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
  
   Ordinance Revisions as Recommended by the Planning Commission: 

17.72.026 (I.2) Accessory Dwelling units shall not exceed 16-feet in height unless constructed over a 
garage, in which case the ADU shall not exceed the height of the primary residence or 35-
feet 

 



December 19, 2019  PC 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

17.72.026 (I.3) Accessory Dwelling Unit Entrances shall be oriented to face the street except that if 
topographic or other site constraints prevent such orientation, the entrance shall be screened 
from neighboring properties. 

 
17.72.026 (M) Any ADU taking advantage of reduced setbacks pursuant to Section 17.72.027 shall not 

have doors or windows within such setback unless required to meet health and safety 
requirements.  

 
17.72.026 (P) A detached ADU  may include an attached unconditioned garage space that does not 

exceed 250 square feet. 
  
17.72.029 (G) Kitchen Requirements: The junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency 

kitchen, including a food preparation counter, a cook stove (as opposed to the term 
“cooking appliances” provided by the State language), and storage cabinets that are of 
reasonable size in relation to the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit. 

 
 

8. 211 Broad Street –  Sign Variance  and National Hotel Exterior Renovation (continue to January 16, 2019) 

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to continue until the January 16, 2019 meeting 
Seconded by J. Rainey 
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
CANNABIS BUSINESS APPLICATIONS  

9. SBGE, Inc, dba Bloomfield - Cannabis Extraction Manufacturing and Distribution Business- Amendment to include a 
hydrocarbon extraction component 

Motion by D. Bohegian to approve the amended application as presented to authorize the addition of 
hydrocarbon extraction to their authorized application and business operation, subject to the updated 
Conditions of Approval as amended by the planning commission, making findings a-c 
Seconded by P. Van Zant 
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 

 
Added Condition of approval: Operational hours between 8PM to 8AM shall be passive in nature, in terms of 
operation shall not be visible from an outside observer and shall not involve shipping/receiving activities. 
 

10. Deep Dessert, LLC – Cannabis Infusion Manufacturing and Distribution Business 

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to find the project exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (existing 
facilities) because the building is already existing and the proposed cannabis manufacturing and 
distribution use is consistent with the principal permitted uses allowed in the Light Industrial Zoning 
District pursuant to Section 17.48.020, and there is no expansion of use  beyond what is already considered 
a  permitted use 
Seconded by J. Rainey  
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
 



December 19, 2019  PC 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

Motion by P. Van Zant to approve the application as presented to authorize a cannabis business permit to 
Deep Desert LLC for a manufacturing  and distribution operation at 555 Searls Avenue, suite 4 subject to 
the recommended Conditions of Approval, attached, as may be  modified by the planning commission, 
making findings “a” and “b”: 
Seconded by D. Bohegian 
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 

 

11. MMR Books, LLC- Cannabis Hydrocarbon Extraction Manufacturing and Distribution Business 

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to find the project exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (existing 
facilities) because the building is already existing and the proposed cannabis manufacturing and 
distribution use is consistent with the principal permitted uses allowed in the Light Industrial Zoning 
District pursuant to Section 17.48.020, and there is no expansion of use  beyond what is already considered 
a  permitted use 
Seconded by D. Bohegian 
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
 
Motion by P. Van Zant to approve the application as presented to authorize a cannabis business permit to 
MMR Books, LLC “MMR” for a manufacturing  and distribution operation at 545 Searls Avenue, suite 5  
subject to the recommended Conditions of Approval, attached, as may be  modified by the planning 
commission, making findings “a” and “b”: 
Seconded by D. Bohegian 
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries  
12. Spoiled Patient Collective, LLC - Cannabis Hydrocarbon Extraction Manufacturing Business 

Public: None 
Motion by P. Van Zant to find the project exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (existing 
facilities) because the building is already existing and the proposed cannabis manufacturing and 
distribution use is consistent with the principal permitted uses allowed in the Light Industrial Zoning 
District pursuant to Section 17.48.020, and there is no expansion of use  beyond what is already considered 
a  permitted use 
Seconded by D. Bohegian 
Vote:       4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
 
Motion by D. Bohegian to approve the application as presented to authorize a cannabis business permit to 
Spoiled Patient Collective, LLC for a manufacturing  operation at 545 Searls Avenue, suite 1  subject to 
the recommended Conditions of Approval, attached, as may be  modified by the planning commission, 
making findings “a” and “b”: 
Seconded by P. Van Zant 
Vote:        4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS –Previously approved projects – informational only 

STAFF APPROVALS AND DETERMINATIONS – (for information only): 

To Be Provided at Meeting 

CORRESPONDENCE:   



December 19, 2019  PC 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:    

Next Regular Meeting – January 16, 2020 

Happy Holidays! 

ADJOURNMENT   

Motion by  J. Rainey  to adjourn at 5:43 p.m. 
Seconded by D. Bohegian 
4  ayes,      0   noes,  1 absent (Lauters),    motion carries 
 



          City of Nevada City  

  
 
 
TO:    Planning Commission 
FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
MEETING  DATE:  January 16, 2020 
RE: Crosswalk Design throughout the City 

BACKGROUND: Engineering and Public Works Department staff are preparing to install a 
crosswalk at the intersection of Railroad Avenue and Sacramento Street, as part of pedestrian 
improvement plans being implemented city-wide.  Because crosswalks are often prominently visible, 
they have the potential for impacting the overall City aesthetics. Staff is seeking the Planning 
Commission’s direction on material and design options so that these improvements maintain a 
consistent aesthetic throughout the City, and are compatible with the City’s design goals, particularly 
in the Historic District. Attached to this staff report are several examples of crosswalk styles for the 
Commission’s consideration.  
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Proved direction to Engineering and Public Works staff on appropriate an 
appropriate crosswalk design to use throughout the City.  
 

 



bmcalister
Text Box
NEVADA CITYEAST BROAD STREET



bmcalister
Text Box
CITRUS HEIGHTS



bmcalister
Text Box
ROSEVILLE



bmcalister
Text Box
OLD DOWNTOWNFOLSOM



bmcalister
Text Box
OLD DOWNTOWNFOLSOM



bmcalister
Text Box
GRASS VALLEY



bmcalister
Text Box
GRASS VALLEY



bmcalister
Text Box
OLD DOWNTOWN SACRAMENTO



bmcalister
Text Box
OLD DOWNTOWN SACRAMENTO



bmcalister
Text Box
DOWNTOWNTRUCKEE



bmcalister
Text Box
DOWNTOWNTRUCKEE



bmcalister
Text Box
DOWNTOWNPLACERVILLE



bmcalister
Text Box
DOWNTOWNPLACERVILLE



City of Nevada City 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

TO:   Planning Commission 

FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2020 

RE:     Architectural Review Application for Exterior Alterations at 224 Church Street 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Application for Architectural Review
2) Improvement Plans (Site Plan, Floor Plan, Elevation Details)
3) Garage Door Spec Sheet

 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
1) Approve new garage door for 224 Church

SITE SPECIFICATIONS: 
Lot Size: 0.31acres Lot Coverage: 100% 
Zoning: GB-HD-SC: General Business-Historical District Building Height: 40-feet 
Setbacks: None Historical District: Within 

BACKGROUND: The owner of the building, John Conger and his design team originally presented an 
application for exterior alterations of the subject building at the August 15, 2019 Planning Commission meeting. 
At the September 19, 2019 meeting, the Planning Commission approved a Use Permit for specified office uses on 
the ground floor and also approved architectural review for a newly proposed garage with upper story deck, to be 
located in the rear of the existing building. The Commission further approved exterior alterations at their Meeting 
held on October 17, 2019 and the Special Meeting held on October 30, 2019.  

Immediately following this approval, Conger’s neighbor expressed concern that the corrugated metal cladding  
and faux windows would create gaps between the rock face and metal that would potentially invite rodent and 
pest problems. As a result, Conger requested that the Planning Commission consider a revised Architectural 
Review proposal at their November 21, 2019 meeting to reconsider the metal cladding and faux windows and 
allow the rock face to remain as is,  and also allow the north elevation to remain as is, though painted in the 
proposed color scheme. The Planning Commission denied Conger’s proposal from the November 21st meeting 
based on it being incompatible with Motherlode architecture. However, Conger appealed this decision at the 
January 8, City Council meeting, whereby Council overturned the Planning Commission decision with a 4 to 1 
vote. Therefore the elevations as presented at the November 21st Planning Commission meeting and at the January 
8th City Council Meeting represent the approved Architectural Review, attached.  

The current structure was constructed in 1962 and is not considered a contributing building to the National 
Register Historic District. The National Register inventory describes it as follows:  

This one-story, flat roof building with uncovered rubble stone on the Main Street 
end and an all-glass front is not compatible with Nevada City architecture.       



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 
1898 Sanborn Map Excerpt (orange line represents approximate, current property lines) 

 
As submitted for the National Register (1985) 

CURRENT PROPOSAL: Conger is proposing to install a garage door on the front of the building, facing 
Church Street, with access from the existing parking lot.  The garage door is a full-view, aluminum door that 
incorporates window lites across the entire panel.  
 
The four parking spaces will need to be removed in order to accommodate the drive access. The loss of parking 
will limit the commercial use of the building, though presently Conger has decided to improve the space only for 
residential use of two units, for which adequate parking exists. Staff has added a condition of approval, that any 
commercial use of the building shall require evaluation by the Planning Department for consistency with 
commercial, off-street parking standards.   
 
Conger is also proposing a new barrier gate at the entrance of the parking lot off Church Street. However, this 
feature is not under the purview of the Planning Commission since it does not involve an alteration of the building 
itself. It will need to be reviewed by City staff, including the Fire and Engineering Departments in order to make 
sure it is installed consistent with safety standards.  
 
 



City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS:  

Historical District: Pursuant to Section 17.68.070  of the City Municipal Code, Stylistic conformance of 
alteration or new construction, all buildings which may hereafter be constructed or altered as to their exterior 
appearance within  the historical district shall substantially conform with the Mother Lode type of architecture 
with respect to their exterior appearance within public view. 

Scenic Corridor: The subject property is designated with a scenic corridor (SC) combining district. This 
designation is applied to land areas which are adjacent to roads and highways which are indicated on the General 
Plan with the symbol for scenic corridors, and as may be designated by the city council from time to time. These 
roadways are generally entryways to Nevada City which were recognized in the General Plan as being particularly 
important to protect the existing essential character of Nevada City, namely that of a small, compact historical 
town surrounded by green, wooded hills, by hiding development from view from the highways and preserving the 
existing tree cover to the greatest extent possible, and assuring visually pleasing corridors.  The planning 
commission may require the incorporation of special conditions of approval or design features, prior to approval.  

Environmental Review: Staff has determined that the project is exempt from environmental review pursuant to 
§15301 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines. The CEQA Guidelines for Categorical 
Exemption §15301, Existing Facilities  “consists of operation, repair maintenance of existing public or private 
structures or facilities…involving no or negligible expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead 
agency’s determination.” 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

A. The Planning Commission, acting as the Architectural Review Committee, approves the Architectural 
Review application, as conditioned, for the proposed exterior alterations located at 224 Church Street, 
Nevada City, CA, making findings a and d: 

a. That the garage door is generally compatible with Mother Lode style Architecture and with the 
Historical District 

b. That the garage door is compatible with the context of the surrounding neighborhood.  

c. That the garage door, as conditioned, is consistent with the General Plan in preserving the Nevada 
City essential character and scenic corridor designation; 

d. That the garage door, as conditioned, contains sufficient design and/or landscaping features to 
protect and enhance the aesthetics of the scenic corridor. 

RECOMMENDED CONIDTIONS OF APPROVAL:  
1. Nevada City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of permits.  The County 

will not issue permits unless the plans have been stamped and approved by Nevada City.  Therefore, prior to 
issuance of a building permit, submit one digital copy of plans OR three sets of plans to Nevada City Planning 
Department, along with a filing fee of $100 (made payable to the City of Nevada City).  The plans will be 
reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer for consistency with the approval and will require their 
signatures.   
 

2. Material selections, colors, and  all proposed work shall substantially comply with the exhibits presented  and 
approved by the Planning Commission.   

3. Any future use beyond the two residential units shall be evaluated by the City Planner to determine the 
adequacy of off-street parking to serve those uses.  

4. All State, Local, and Federal permits required for the project shall be the responsibility of the property owner 
including, but not limited to the following agencies, Northern Sierra Air Quality District (potentially for the 
fireplace), Nevada County Building Department, the Nevada City Engineer, and the Nevada City Fire 
Department.   

5. The decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the city council not later than fifteen (15) days 
after this final action or decision. Any work during this period is at the applicant’s own risk.  









 
2

5

0

7

'
 
-

 
0

"

 
2
5
0
8
'
 
-
 
0
"

 
2

5

0

9

'
 
-
 
0

"

 

2

5

1

0

'
 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

1

'
 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

2

'

 

-

 

0

"
 

2

5

1

3

'

 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

4

'

 

-

 

0

" 

2

5

1

5

'
 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

6

'
 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

7

'
 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

8

'
 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

1

9

'

 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

2

0

'

 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

2

1

'

 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

2

2

'

 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

2

3

'

 

-

 

0

"

 

2

5

2

4

'
 

-

 

0

"

 
2
4
9
9
'
 
-
 
0
"

 
2
5
0
0
'
 
-
 
0
"

 
2
5
0
1
'
 
-
 
0
"

 
2

5

0

2

'
 
-
 
0

"

 
2
5
0
3
'
 
-
 
0
"

 
2
5
0
4
'
 
-
 
0
"

 
2
5
0
5
'
 
-
 
0
"

EXISTING BUILDING

TO BE REMODELED

2

5

2

0

2

5

1

5

2

5

1

5

C

 

H

 

U

 

R

 

C

 

H

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

 

T

 

R

 

E

 

E

 

T

M

 

A

 

I

 

N

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

 

T

 

R

 

E

 

E

 

T

E

N

T

R

Y

 

2

5

1

0

'

 

-

 

0

"

NEW PROPOSED

GARAGE  - 381 S.F.

4

AUTOMATIC VEHICLE ARM GATE

SCALE: 3/4"=1'-0"

CALIFORNIA
BUILDING PLANS

224 CHURCH STREET
NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959 

APN: 005-390-004

224 CHURCH ST.
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

JOHN CONGER

A1.1

SITE PLAN

1

SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3

PELTON WHEEL

SCALE: NONE

2

STREET SIGN

SCALE: NONE

BUILDING COVERAGE CALCULATION

E:\Dropbox\Dropbox\DRAFTING\CAD-COM\224 Church St TI\A1.1 SITE PLAN_224 CHURCH.dwg, 1/5/2020 6:11:59 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) GAS METER  TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PARKING  SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PARKING SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) A/C CONDENSER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PARKING  SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PARKING  SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) BALCONY ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) RAMP UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HISTORIC  7' DIA. PELTON WHEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) A.C. PAVING  TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) A.D.A. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT PARCEL PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIGN POST W/ NEW SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE BREAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE PORTIONS OF (E) PLANTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GRADED DRIVEWAY SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED VEHICLE  ARM GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) VEHICLE ARM GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-16' WOODEN BARRIER ARM GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE OPERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPPORT SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. STATUS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020 PLANNING SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 JOERSCHKE DRIVE, #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 95945

AutoCAD SHX Text
(530) 913-3162 | www.calbuildingplans.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.J.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.W.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19035

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERAGE = 32.9%%% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY = 0.31 AC = 13,503 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4140 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE FOOTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4440 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL



BEDROOM

KITCHEN

LIVINGROOM

BEDROOMBATH-2

STORAGE

1 2 3

4

5 6

A

B

1 2 3 4 5 6

B

A

BATH-1

GARAGE-1 

WALL LEGEND

CALIFORNIA
BUILDING PLANS

224 CHURCH STREET
NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959 

APN: 005-390-004

224 CHURCH ST.
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

JOHN CONGER

A3.1

LOWER LEVEL

FLOOR PLAN

1

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

E:\Dropbox\Dropbox\DRAFTING\CAD-COM\224 Church St TI\A3.1 LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN_224 CHURCH.dwg, 1/5/2020 6:12:03 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) STAIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUB/SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW TRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&P

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHELVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)  FURNACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&P

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHELVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF.  SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE/ OVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK W/ DISP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CONC. COLUMN (TYP. OF 4) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.V.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.&D. 27x30

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY ABV.-SEE UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN F/ ADDL. INFO. THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CMU WALL, TYP U.O.N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) FRAMED WALLS @ GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOES

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&P

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 2x4 WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2x4 WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 8" C.M.U. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8" C.M.U. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. STATUS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020 PLANNING SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 JOERSCHKE DRIVE, #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 95945

AutoCAD SHX Text
(530) 913-3162 | www.calbuildingplans.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.J.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.W.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19035

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT



KITCHEN

(E) BATH

(E) MECHANICAL

(E) BATH

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

1 2 3

4

5 6

A

B

1 2 3 4 5 6

B

A

C

D

E

C

D

E

BEDROOM

BATH-2

BALCONY

BEDROOM

BATH-1 CLOSET

LIVINGROOM

ROOF DECK

ENTRY

SAUNA

GARAGE-2

(E) OFFICE(E) OFFICE

(E) OFFICE

(E) OFFICE

(E) OFFICE

(E) OFFICE

(E) OFFICE

WALL LEGEND

CALIFORNIA
BUILDING PLANS

224 CHURCH STREET
NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959 

APN: 005-390-004

224 CHURCH ST.
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

JOHN CONGER

A3.2

UPPER LEVEL

FLOOR PLAN

1

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

E:\Dropbox\Dropbox\DRAFTING\CAD-COM\224 Church St TI\A3.2 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN_224 CHURCH.dwg, 1/5/2020 6:12:08 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) STAIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) LIGHT FIXTURE-TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) 7' DIA. HISTORIC  PELTON WHEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) 2868

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&P

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY  CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUB/SHOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S&P

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.&D. 27x30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REF. SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE/ OVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK W/ DISP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPPED  SHELVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICRO. ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) LIGHT FIXTURE-TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PLANTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PARKING LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) ELEC. SUB-  PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) W.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) COMM.  CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS STOVE  & HEARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
136116 OVERHEAD GARAGE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 2x4 WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2x4 WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 8" C.M.U. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 8" C.M.U. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. STATUS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020 PLANNING SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 JOERSCHKE DRIVE, #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 95945

AutoCAD SHX Text
(530) 913-3162 | www.calbuildingplans.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.J.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.W.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19035

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT



DOOR SCHEDULEWINDOW SCHEDULE

CALIFORNIA
BUILDING PLANS

224 CHURCH STREET
NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959 

APN: 005-390-004

224 CHURCH ST.
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

JOHN CONGER

A3.3

DOOR & WINDOW

SCHEDULE /

EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE

E:\Dropbox\Dropbox\DRAFTING\CAD-COM\224 Church St TI\A3.3 DOOR & WINDOW SCHEDULE_224 CHURCH.dwg, 1/5/2020 6:12:13 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX U-FACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHGC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFETY GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INT./EXT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX U-FACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX SHGC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFETY GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE WEATHER STRIPPING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUST HAVE SELF-CLOSING HARDWARE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW SILL IS LESS THAN 24 INCHES FROM THE FINISH FLOOR AND MORE THAN 72 INCHES ABOVE EXTERIOR FINISH GRADE. PROVIDE WINDOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUST BE NON-COMBUSTIBLE, IGNITION-RESISTANT, MINIMUM 1 3/8" THICK, SOLID CORE OR HAVE A MINIMUM 20 MINUTE FIRE RESISTIVE RATING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ROUGH OPENING SIZES PRIOR TO ORDERING WINDOWS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPENING CONTROL DEVICE. (R312.2.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0" x 6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:  1. IF WINDOW SILL IS LESS THAN 24 INCHES FROM THE FINISH FLOOR AND MORE THAN 72 INCHES ABOVE EXTERIOR FINISH GRADE. PROVIDE IF WINDOW SILL IS LESS THAN 24 INCHES FROM THE FINISH FLOOR AND MORE THAN 72 INCHES ABOVE EXTERIOR FINISH GRADE. PROVIDE WINDOW OPENING CONTROL DEVICE. (R312.2.1) 2. EGRESS WINDOW. OPENING AREA OF WINDOW MUST BE 5.7 SQUARE FEET (5 SQUARE FEET AT GRADE FLOOR OR BELOW GRADE EGRESS WINDOW. OPENING AREA OF WINDOW MUST BE 5.7 SQUARE FEET (5 SQUARE FEET AT GRADE FLOOR OR BELOW GRADE OPENINGS), HAVE 24 INCHES CLEAR OPENING HEIGHT, AND 20 INCHES CLEAR OPENING WIDTH. SILL OF CLEAR OPENING SHALL BE AT 44 INCHES MAX ABOVE FINISH FLOOR. 3. EXISTING WINDOWEXISTING WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 3'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER HEAD   GARAGE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BI-FOLD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BI-PASS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"x 7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARN-TYPE  DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 3'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-0"W.x 8'-0"H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL-UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 8'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER  ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-10"x 6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BI-PASS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0" x 6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0" x 6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWER  ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"x 6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BI-PASS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4" x 8'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4" x 8'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4" x 8'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0" x 4'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE HUNG

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4" x 6'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4" x 6'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4" x 7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6" x 6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULLY TEMPERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1, 2, 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURITY  DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"x 6'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE HINGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. STATUS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020 PLANNING SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 JOERSCHKE DRIVE, #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 95945

AutoCAD SHX Text
(530) 913-3162 | www.calbuildingplans.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.J.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.W.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19035

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:



MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

2 3 4 51 6

LOWER FLOOR

2505' - 4 1/2"

LOWER FLOOR

2505' - 4 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

A B C D E

SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

BALCONY RAILING

4

MATERIALS LIST

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE

PROPOSED EXTERIOR MATERIALS.  HATCHES SHOWN

MAY NOT BE TO SCALE. ALL EXTERIOR MATERIALS TO

BE VERIFIED BY OWNER.

ENTRY FASCIA: EXISTING, TO REMAIN

CMU BLOCK: BASALITE SHOT BLAST COLOR 790 OR

791. PAINT TO MATCH EXISTING

STONE VENEER: EXISTING, TO REMAIN

WINDOWS: ANDERSON E-SERIES,  DARK BRONZE

METAL CLAD WOOD WITH SIMULATED DIVIDED LITES

PER ELEVATIONS (7/8" WIDE MULLIONS, MIN.).

STOREFRONT WINDOWS: EXISTING, TO REMAIN

GARAGE DOOR:   NICKSBUILDING.COM

HERITAGE KNOTTY CEDAR, NO LITES

COLOR - NATURAL WITH VAN DYKE BROWN GLAZE,

LIGHT DISTRESSED

CALIFORNIA
BUILDING PLANS

224 CHURCH STREET
NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959 

APN: 005-390-004

224 CHURCH ST.
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

JOHN CONGER

A6.1

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

1

NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

2

EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

3

LIGHT FIXTURE

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

E:\Dropbox\Dropbox\DRAFTING\CAD-COM\224 Church St TI\A6.1-A6.2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS_224 CHURCH.dwg, 1/5/2020 6:12:19 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP OF (3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE COLUMN. PAINT, MAINTAIN EXISTING COLOR, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROCK VENEER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT EXISTING FASCIA. MAINTAIN EXISTING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAMED OPENING WITH STUCCO FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-6"x11'-6" GLASS GARAGE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROCK VENEER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE WALL W/ SKIM COAT. PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"x2 " TUBE 12" TUBE STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
34"x " STEEL 18" STEEL PLATE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACORN BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"x2" TUBE STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. STATUS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020 PLANNING SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 JOERSCHKE DRIVE, #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 95945

AutoCAD SHX Text
(530) 913-3162 | www.calbuildingplans.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.J.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.W.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19035

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:



LOWER FLOOR

2505' - 4 1/2"

LOWER FLOOR

2505' - 4 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

ABCDE

LOWER FLOOR

2505' - 4 1/2"

LOWER FLOOR

2505' - 4 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN FLOOR

2514' - 1 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

MAIN PLATE

2526' - 7 1/2"

2345 16

MATERIALS LIST

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE

PROPOSED EXTERIOR MATERIALS.  HATCHES SHOWN

MAY NOT BE TO SCALE. ALL EXTERIOR MATERIALS TO

BE VERIFIED BY OWNER.

ENTRY FASCIA: EXISTING, TO REMAIN

CMU BLOCK: BASALITE SHOT BLAST COLOR 790 OR

791. PAINT TO MATCH EXISTING

STONE VENEER: EXISTING, TO REMAIN

WINDOWS: ANDERSON E-SERIES,  DARK BRONZE

METAL CLAD WOOD WITH SIMULATED DIVIDED LITES

PER ELEVATIONS (7/8" WIDE MULLIONS, MIN.).

STOREFRONT WINDOWS: EXISTING, TO REMAIN

GARAGE DOOR:   NICKSBUILDING.COM

HERITAGE KNOTTY CEDAR, NO LITES

COLOR - NATURAL WITH VAN DYKE BROWN GLAZE,

LIGHT DISTRESSED

SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

WINDOW INSTALLATION

5

CALIFORNIA
BUILDING PLANS

224 CHURCH STREET
NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959 

APN: 005-390-004

224 CHURCH ST.
TENANT IMPROVEMENT

JOHN CONGER

3

SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

4

WEST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

A6.2

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

E:\Dropbox\Dropbox\DRAFTING\CAD-COM\224 Church St TI\A6.1-A6.2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS_224 CHURCH.dwg, 1/5/2020 6:12:22 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CMU WALL - PAINT, MAINTAIN EXISTING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CMU SITE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GARAGE - STUCCO FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CMU WALL - PAINT, MAINTAIN EXISTING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE STAIR ENCLOSURE - STUCCO FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACED WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACED WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DOOR IN EXISTING WINDOW OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACED WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROCK VENEER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE WALL W/ SKIM COAT. PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT CMU WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, TYP OF (6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DOOR IN EXISTING WINDOW OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALCONY RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CMU WALL - PAINT, MAINTAIN EXISTING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GARAGE - STUCCO FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GARAGE STAIR ENCLOSURE, STUCCO FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR 2514' - 1  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL PLATES AND BOLT. PAINT TO MATCH WALLS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-CAST CONCRETE SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL PLATES AND BOLT. PAINT TO MATCH WALLS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. STATUS/REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020 PLANNING SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 JOERSCHKE DRIVE, #5

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 95945

AutoCAD SHX Text
(530) 913-3162 | www.calbuildingplans.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.J.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/6/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.W.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19035

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:



THE  
QUALITY  
GARAGE  
DOOR™

 |  F U L L - V I E W  A L U M I N U M



2

3295 shown in clear anodized with optional frosted glass

|  F U L L - V I E W  A L U M I N U M
A dramatic statement, made to fit your contemporary garage door application. Our full-view aluminum garage doors are 
expertly engineered of aluminum and glass that will give your home the perfect blend of industrial and ultra modern.

|  K E Y  F E AT U R E S

INSULATION
Optional insulated 
section rails are available 
providing additional 
therrmal protection for 
your garage space.

BULB SEAL
Integrated bulb seal 
eliminates air and water 
infiltration keeping your 
interiors protected from 
the unwanted elements.

SECTION 
CONSTRUCTION
Rail and stile sections are 
assembled with through 
bolts for added strength 
and longevity. 

POWDER COATING
Choose from 188 color 
options that provide a 
maintenance free,  
durable finish.

Enjoy the view but keep the noise out!
C.H.I Full-View Aluminum doors have been tested and  
certified for an STC (sound transmission class) Rating of 27.



3

|  P E R S O N A L I Z I N G  O P T I O N S
Choose from a variety of personalizing options to complement your home’s design and create immediate curb appeal.

FINISH SUPER DURABLE POWDER COAT COLORS All powder coat colors add 1-week lead time

Clear Anodized White Almond Sandstone Brown Bronze Dark Bronze Gray Desert Tan Black

GLASS

Plain Frosted Tinted Obscure

ADDITIONAL GLASS  
& PANEL OPTIONS
In addition to our standard glass offering, customize your 
door with specialty glass, solid panels or special materials. 
Contact your C.H.I. Dealer for options and details.

SECTIONS
Limited Lifetime

SPRINGS
3 Years
HARDWARE
6 Years

Full-View Aluminum Model Comparison Chart
BETTER BEST

Section Construction
2” Thick - Hollow aluminum rails with through bolt 

assembly and bulb seal between sections
2” Thick - Insulated aluminum rails with through bolt 

assembly and bulb seal between sections

Section Material Heavy Duty - Aluminum Heavy Duty - Aluminum

Insulation Type No Insulation Polystyrene Insulation

Panel Style / Model Number2

Full-View
3295 3297

Personalizing Options

Powder Coating1 188 Colors 188 Colors

Windows • •

Solid Panels Insulated or Non-Insulated Insulated or Non-Insulated

Glass • •

Warranty Limited Lifetime Warranty

1 Refer to your local C.H.I. Dealer for exact color match. 2 Model number indicates insulation type.

APPEARANCE PACKAGE
All hardware, including struts and 
track, is powder coated, creating 
a complete garage door system 
with a lasting impression.



All information presented is based on the specifications and features available at the time of printing and is subject to change without notice. 

CHI051 202-190052 0731 V1 20K / ©2019 C.H.I. Overhead Doors

C.H.I. DEALERS

A BETTER BUYING EXPERIENCE
All C.H.I. doors, replacement parts, and accessories are sold only through our 

network of C.H.I. dealers: dedicated professionals who install and service our doors 

with the same quality and workmanship we use to manufacture them.

chiohd.com | 1485 Sunrise Drive | Arthur, IL 61911 | USA

Your Local Garage Door Professional

 |  DOORVISIONS
Bring your vision to life.

*  d o o r v i s i o n s . c h i o h d . c o m



City of Nevada City 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

TO:    Planning Commission 
FROM: Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020 
APPLICANT: Kirk and Deanna McGuire, property owner 
RE: Application for Architectural Review at 632 Zion Street 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Application (Architectural Review)
2. Site Plan and Elevations
3. Site Photos
4. Manufacturer's Spec Sheets: Hardie, Milguard
5. Design Guidelines Section 5.0: Architectural Review Outside the Historical District

Lot Coverage: 50% 
Building Height: 35-feet 

ACTIONS REQUESTED 
1. Approve Architectural Review application

SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
Lot Size: 0.26 acres 
Zoning: R1: Single-Family Residential 
Setbacks: Front yard: 30-ft, Rear Yard: 25-ft, Interior side 

yards: 5-ft, Corner Side: 10-feet 
Historical District: Outside 

BACKGROUND: The subject property is developed with an existing 685 square foot unit in 1942 
according to the property owners, Kirk and Deanna McGuire. They are proposing to construct a new 
primary unit and convert the existing unit to an Accessory Dwelling Unit pursuant to a pending 
Ordinance that is going for a second reading before City Council at their January 22, 2020 meeting, to 
go into effect 30 days after adoption.  

PROJECT PROPOSAL: The proposed residence will be 1,288 square feet in size and will be on-
story. The roof material will be composition shingle and siding is proposed to be a horizontal Hardie 
lap siding on the front, vertical siding on the sides and rear. Windows will be single-hung, vinyl 
material   The front gable roof pitch facing the road will be pitched at 7:12, consistent with Design 
Guidelines for Nevada City style architecture. The property is consistent with all site development 
standards including property line setbacks, and sensitive resource setbacks. 

Front Elevation (facing Zion Street) 



Page 2 of 3 
McGuire Residence 
PC 1/16/2020 
 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 
Material Details: 

  

Windows Siding Roofing 
Vinyl single-hung Hardie-lap Composition Shingle 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Architectural Review: The Planning Commission, in their role as the Architectural Review 
Committee, is required to review proposals for the erection or exterior alterations of any structure, or 
the remodel, demolition, or razing of any structure. Findings must be made that the structure is 
generally compatible with Nevada City style architecture and compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood.   
 
Second Dwelling Unit: The applicant is also proposing to convert the existing unit to an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit (ADU) pursuant to a pending Ordinance update that will be codified under Section 
17.72.023 in the City municipal Code. ADU’s that meet the standards of that section are required to be 
ministerally processed provided they are compatible with the architecture of the primary dwelling. 
Many of the pictures attached to the staff report show the existing dwelling unit.  
 
Environmental Review: Because a residence meets criteria in the R1 zoning designation, as an 
allowed use on the property, local authority can only be ministerial in nature. Sections 21080 of the 
Public Resource Code, of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), exempts ministerial 
projects from environmental review.   
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 
1) Make a Motion to Approve the Architectural Review Application subject to the above Conditions 

of Approval or as modified, making findings a and b,  Sections 17.88.040 of the City Municipal 
Code: 
a) That the proposed residential structure is generally compatible with Nevada City style 

architecture; and 
 
b) That the proposed residence is compatible with the context of the surrounding neighborhood; 

and  
 

RECOMMENDED CONIDTIONS OF APPROVAL:  
1. Nevada City contracts with the Nevada County Building Department for issuance of permits.  The 

County will not issue permits unless the plans have been stamped and approved by Nevada City.  



Page 3 of 3 
McGuire Residence 
PC 1/16/2020 
 

City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

Therefore, prior to issuance of a building permit, submit three sets of plans to Nevada City 
Planning Department, along with a filing fee of $100 (made payable to the City of Nevada City).  
The plans will be reviewed by the City Planner and City Engineer for consistency with the 
approval and will require their signatures.   
 

2. All improvements shall substantially comply with the exhibits presented to the Planning 
Commission.  
 

3. A Planning Commission member shall be appointed as a Liaison to assist the applicant with any 
minor modifications to the permit, if needed. 

 





















































G
eneral 

Product 
Inform

ation

Tools for 
C

utting and 
Fastening

G
eneral 

Installation
R

equirem
ents

G
eneral 

Fastener 
R

equirem
ents

Finishing and
M

aintenance
H

ardieTrim
®

 B
oards/B

attens
H

ardieW
rap

®

 W
eather B

arrier
H

ardieSoffit ®

 Panels
H

ardiePlank
®

 Lap Siding
H

ardieShingle
®

 Siding
H

ardiePanel ®

 Vertical Siding
ESR

-1844 &
2290 R

eport
Appendix/
G

lossary
W

orking 
Safely

85

HardiePlank® Lap Siding Product Description

HardiePlank® lap siding is factory-primed fiber-cement lap siding available in a variety of styles and textures. Please 
see your local James Hardie® product dealer for product availability. HardiePlank lap siding comes in 12 ft. lengths. 
Nominal widths from 51/4 in to 12 in. create a range of exposures from 4 in to 103/4 in

HardiePlank lap siding is also available with ColorPlus® Technology as one of James Hardie’s prefinished products. 
ColorPlus® Technology is a factory applied, oven-baked finish available on a variety of James Hardie siding and trim 
products. See your local dealer for details and availability of products, colors, and accessories.

The HZ5® product line is right at home in climates with freezing temperatures, seasonal temperature variations, 
snow and ice. HZ5® boards are the result of our generational evolution of our time-tested products. We’ve evolved our 
substrate composition to be specifically designed to perform in conditions found in these climates. To ensure that its 
beauty matches its durability, we’ve engineered the surface for higher performance, giving it superior paint adhesion 
and moisture resistance. In addition, we’ve added a drip edge to the HardiePlank® HZ5® lap siding product to provide 
improved water management in conditions specific to HZ5® climates.

Sloped 
Edge

Nail Line

Drip Edge

Select Cedarmill© Smooth

Beaded Smooth Custom Colonial Roughsawn®

Beaded Cedarmill©

Custom Colonial Smooth®



G
en

er
al

 
Pr

od
uc

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

W
or

ki
ng

 
Sa

fe
ly

To
ol

s 
fo

r 
C

ut
tin

g 
an

d 
Fa

st
en

in
g

G
en

er
al

 
In

st
al

la
tio

n
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

G
en

er
al

 
Fa

st
en

er
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

Fi
ni

sh
in

g 
an

d
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
H

ar
di

eT
rim

®

 B
oa

rd
s/

B
at

te
ns

H
ar

di
eW

ra
p®

 W
ea

th
er

 B
ar

rie
r

H
ar

di
eS

of
fit

®

 P
an

el
s

H
ar

di
eP

la
nk

®

 L
ap

 S
id

in
g

H
ar

di
eS

hi
ng

le
®

 S
id

in
g

H
ar

di
eP

an
el

®

 V
er

tic
al

 S
id

in
g

ES
R

-1
84

4 
&

22
90

 R
ep

or
t

Ap
pe

nd
ix

/
G

lo
ss

ar
y

86

Install factory ends of 
planks at butt joints.

OVERVIEW OF HARDIEPLANK LAP SIDING

Ends of planks must 
land over a stud.

Framing square and 
torpedo level transfer 
the course elevationsStagger butt joints a mini-

mum of 2 stud bays for 16 
in. O.C. framing

Starter 
strip

Starter strip builds out siding 
to the proper angle.

Framed wall with 
structural sheathing

Joint flashing

Install starter 
strip over the 
weather barrier 
and even with 
the bottom of 
the sheathing.

Water-resistive barrier

INSTALL A STARTER STRIP

HardiePlank® lap siding requires a starter strip beneath the first course to set 
it on the proper angle and to create a proper drip edge at the bottom of the 
siding. Starter strips are easily made by ripping 1¼ in. pieces of HardiePlank 
siding from full or partial planks.

The bottom of the starter strip should be installed even with the bottom of 
the mudsill or the bottom edge of the sheathing. The strip must be installed 
over the water-resistive barrier, but occasional gaps should be left in the starter 
strip to allow any accumulated moisture behind the siding to drain away safely.

TIP: For accurate fastening, snap vertical chalk lines on 
the water-resistive barrier at the center of every stud 

location.

Water-resistive barrier10.1

10.2

Installation of HardiePlank® Lap Siding



G
eneral 

Product 
Inform

ation

Tools for 
C

utting and 
Fastening

G
eneral 

Installation
R

equirem
ents

G
eneral 

Fastener 
R

equirem
ents

Finishing and
M

aintenance
H

ardieTrim
®

 B
oards/B

attens
H

ardieW
rap

®

 W
eather B

arrier
H

ardieSoffit ®

 Panels
H

ardiePlank
®

 Lap Siding
H

ardieShingle
®

 Siding
H

ardiePanel ®

 Vertical Siding
ESR

-1844 &
2290 R

eport
Appendix/
G

lossary
W

orking 
Safely

87

Pull from across the stack Do not go down the stack

TIP: When taking planks from the pallet installation, avoid 
repeating the texture pattern by working across the pallet. Two 
to four planks can be removed from a stack at one time. But then 
material should be taken from adjacent stacks, again working 
across the pallet. Texture repeat is typically a concern on large 
walls with few breaks such as windows or doors.

Pull from across the stack Do not go down the stack

The first course of HardiePlank® siding is 
critical to the proper installation of the plank 
on the rest of the building. The first course 
should start at the lowest point of the house 
and within required clearances. Special 
attention should be made to ensure that it’s 
straight and level. Attention should also be 
paid to staggering any butt joints in the planks 
so that the installation is attractive while mak-
ing efficient use of material.

1. Use a level (4 ft. or longer) or chalked level 
line to be sure that the first course is level. 
As installation proceeds up the wall, peri- Snapped chalk line guides the first course.

Use a level 4 ft. or 
longer level to check 
the first course.

Keep bottom 
edge of the first 
course even with 
the bottom of 
the corner trim.

 INSTALLING THE PLANKS

End plank 
courses 1/8 in  
from vertical 
trim and  
fill gap with  
permanently  
flexible caulk.

PLANK ALIGNMENT AT CORNERS 

HANDLING

10.3

10.4

odically check the level and straightness of the courses. When correcting for flatness over products such as exterior 
insulation, use drywall shims. It is good practice to snap a chalk line every 3 to 5 courses to keep the planks straight 
and level.

2. Position the bottom edge of the first course of siding a minimum ¼ in below the edge of the starter strip (maintain 
required clearances) and secure. 

3. Run the siding to the HardieTrim® board leaving a 1/8 in. gap between the siding and trim. 

 The bottom of the siding should be kept even with the bottom of the trim, or if desired, the trim may extend below 
the bottom of the siding. But the siding should never hang below the trim. *When installing the first course make 
sure ground clearances are in accordance with James Hardie requirements and those of local codes.

For the best looking installation, make sure that the heights of the plank 
courses match on both sides of a corner. Use a framing square, speed 
square or a level to match up the plank heights. Check every few courses to 
make sure proper heights are being maintained.

IMPORTANT: To prevent damage to the drip edge, extra care should be tak-
en when removing planks from the pallet, while handling, and when installing 
with a lap gauge. Planks are interlocked together on the pallet, therefore they 
should be removed from the pallet horizontally (side to side) to allow planks to 
unlock themselves from one another.

6 in min



G
en

er
al

 
Pr

od
uc

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

W
or

ki
ng

 
Sa

fe
ly

To
ol

s 
fo

r 
C

ut
tin

g 
an

d 
Fa

st
en

in
g

G
en

er
al

 
In

st
al

la
tio

n
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

G
en

er
al

 
Fa

st
en

er
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

Fi
ni

sh
in

g 
an

d
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
H

ar
di

eT
rim

®

 B
oa

rd
s/

B
at

te
ns

H
ar

di
eW

ra
p®

 W
ea

th
er

 B
ar

rie
r

H
ar

di
eS

of
fit

®

 P
an

el
s

H
ar

di
eP

la
nk

®

 L
ap

 S
id

in
g

H
ar

di
eS

hi
ng

le
®

 S
id

in
g

H
ar

di
eP

an
el

®

 V
er

tic
al

 S
id

in
g

ES
R

-1
84

4 
&

22
90

 R
ep

or
t

Ap
pe

nd
ix

/
G

lo
ss

ar
y

88

BLIND NAILING (nailing through top of plank)

Blind nailing is recommended for installing 
any type of HardiePlank® lap siding 
including ColorPlus® siding. With blind 
nailing, each course covers the fasteners 
on the course below, which provides a 
better looking installation. 

For blind nailing HardiePlank lap siding, 
James Hardie recommends driving 
fasteners 1 in. from the top edge of the 
plank. Additionally fasteners should be 

Although blind nailing is recommended by James Hardie, face nailing may 
be required for certain. installations including: installations in high wind areas, 
fastening into OSB or equivalent sheathing without penetrating a stud, or 
when dictated by specific building codes. Refer to Appendix D for related 
code matters.

Fasteners are 
hidden by the 
course above.

Nails are 
driven 
through the 
sheathing 
into the 
studs.

Keep nails 
3/8 in from 
ends of 
boards.

Nails for blind nailing shall 
be between 3/4 in and 
1 in. from the top of the 
board.

Blind nailing

Exposed 
fasteners 
are driven 
through the 
face of the 
boards.

Drive fasteners 
only where 
planks overlap

Face nailing

Blind nailing measurments

FACE NAILING (nailing through the overlap at the bottom of the plank) 

For walls longer than 12 ft, it is necessary to butt joint additional 
lengths of HardiePlank siding. These butt joints should be staggered 
to avoid noticeable patterns, which is determined by the placement 
of the first course. Butt joints between consecutive courses should 
be spaced apart by at least two stud bays for 16 in, o.c. framing or 
one bay for 24 in. o.c. framing.

While random placement of the planks is usually the most 
aesthetically pleasing, a progressive stagger pattern can make the 
job easier and faster without the pattern becoming too noticeable. 
With this strategy, the cut off piece for one course becomes the 
starter piece for a course above, making efficient use of materials 
and ensuring that all butt joints land on studs. The pattern can be 
modified for different stud placement.

For walls longer than 12 ft 
land butt joints over studs, 
staggering the joints at least 
24 in (for 24 in. o.c. framing) 
or 32 in. (two stud bays for 
16 in. o.c. framing).

Cutoff pieces 
form the 
starter pieces 
for courses 
above. 

STAGGERING THE BUTT JOINTS

10.5 10.6

10.7

10.8

placed no closer than 3/8 in from the ends of the plank. 

HardiePlank® HZ5® Lap Siding is manufactured with a nail line that should be used as a guide for proper nail 
placement when blind nailing. This nail line should not be used as a lap line.

Avoid placing fasteners near the top edge of the plank. This practice, called “high nailing”, may lead to loose 
planks, unwanted gaps or rattling. Pin-backed corners may be done for aesthetic purposes only. Finish 
nails are recommended for pin-backs. Headed siding nails are allowed. Place pin-backs no closer than 
1in. from plank ends & 3/4in. from plank edge into min. 3/8in. wood structural panel. Pin-backs are not a 
substitute for blind or face nailing

Installation of HardiePlank® Lap Siding (cont.)



G
eneral 

Product 
Inform

ation

Tools for 
C

utting and 
Fastening

G
eneral 

Installation
R

equirem
ents

G
eneral 

Fastener 
R

equirem
ents

Finishing and
M

aintenance
H

ardieTrim
®

 B
oards/B

attens
H

ardieW
rap

®

 W
eather B

arrier
H

ardieSoffit ®

 Panels
H

ardiePlank
®

 Lap Siding
H

ardieShingle
®

 Siding
H

ardiePanel ®

 Vertical Siding
ESR

-1844 &
2290 R

eport
Appendix/
G

lossary
W

orking 
Safely

89

COLORPLUS® TIP: When 
installing HardiePlank 
lap siding with ColorPlus 

Technology, position the plank 
in the immediate area where 
the plank is to be fastened. 
Do not place the plank on the 
course below and slide into 
position. Doing so may scuff or 
scratch the ColorPlus finish on 
the installed piece.

Caulking at HardiePlank lap siding butt 
joints is not recommended for ColorPlus 
for aesthetic reasons as the caulking and 
ColorPlus will weather differently. For the 
same reason, do not caulk exposed nail 
heads. Refer to the ColorPlus touch-up 
section for details

Do not use caulk on HardiePlank® lap 
siding with ColorPlus® technology

Flashing behind to add an 
additional layer of protection from 
water infiltration

Extend flashing 
1 in. onto the 
course below

JOINT FLASHING

One or more of the following joint treatment options are required by code (as 
referenced 2009 IRC R703.10.2)

A. Joint Flashing (James Hardie recommended)

B.  Caulking* (Caulking is not recommended for ColorPlus for aesthetic reasons 
as the Caulking and ColorPlus will weather differently. For the same reason, 
do not caulk nail heads on ColorPlus products.}

C. “H” jointer cover

Flashing behind butt joints provides an extra level of protection against the entry 
of water at the joint. James Hardie recommends 6 in. wide flashing that overlaps 
the course below by 1 in. Some local building codes may require different size 
flashing.

Joint-flashing material must be durable, waterproof materials that do not react 
with cement products. Examples of suitable material include finished coil stock and 
code compliant water-resistive barriers. Other products may also be suitable. 

Butt joints in HardiePlank lap siding should always land on 
a stud. Butt joints between studs are not recommended 
and should be avoided. Whenever possible, factory-
finished ends should be used at butt joints.

Place cut ends where the siding meets a corner, door, 
window trim, or other break in the wall where the joint is 
to be caulked. If cut ends are used in a butt joint between 
planks, James Hardie requires sealing cut ends for all 
products. For ColorPlus products, use the color-matched 
edge coater to seal the cut end. 

TIP: Joint flashing can be quickly and easily made by cutting a 6 in. wide section 

off a roll of housewrap. Tape the roll tightly at the cut mark and cut the section off 

using a miter saw with a carbide blade. Individual sheets then can be cut to length 

with a utility knife.

TIP: Use light-colored joint flashing when using light-colored ColorPlus lap siding 

or other siding with a light-colored finish. Dark-color joint flashings should be 

used on siding with dark finishes.

10.9

10.10

Butt planks with 
moderate edge 
contact

10.11

JOINT PLACEMENT AND TREATMENT



G
en

er
al

 
Pr

od
uc

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

W
or

ki
ng

 
Sa

fe
ly

To
ol

s 
fo

r 
C

ut
tin

g 
an

d 
Fa

st
en

in
g

G
en

er
al

 
In

st
al

la
tio

n
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

G
en

er
al

 
Fa

st
en

er
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

Fi
ni

sh
in

g 
an

d
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
H

ar
di

eT
rim

®

 B
oa

rd
s/

B
at

te
ns

H
ar

di
eW

ra
p®

 W
ea

th
er

 B
ar

rie
r

H
ar

di
eS

of
fit

®

 P
an

el
s

H
ar

di
eP

la
nk

®

 L
ap

 S
id

in
g

H
ar

di
eS

hi
ng

le
®

 S
id

in
g

H
ar

di
eP

an
el

®

 V
er

tic
al

 S
id

in
g

ES
R

-1
84

4 
&

22
90

 R
ep

or
t

Ap
pe

nd
ix

/
G

lo
ss

ar
y

90

COLORPLUS TIP: HardiePlank lap siding 
with ColorPlus Technology is shipped 
with a protective laminate slip sheet, 
which should be left in place during 
cutting and fastening to reduce marring 
and scratching. The sheet should be 
removed immediately after each plank is 
installed.

Once the initial course of HardiePlank® 
siding is fastened to the wall, continue 
installing successive courses with full 
12 ft. pieces (follow the stagger pattern 
for longer walls), or until a window, door 
or other opening interrupts the course 
(fig 10.12). Notch planks as needed to 
fit around windows and doors. Again, 
be sure to seal all cut edges. Avoid 
placing butt joints directly above or below 
windows or above doors. Separate the 
joint from the opening by at least one 
course of siding.

Where butt joints land on a stud, make 
sure there is enough stud space for plank 
on both sides of the joint to land properly. 
Optimally both sides of a butt joint 
should land in the middle of a stud with 
3/4 in landing space for each side. The 
minimum stud space for a  
plank to land is 3/8 in

Pay special attention to window, 
doors, and corners that have been 
trimmed before the siding goes on. 
Vertical trim boards may cover the king 
studs beside windows or doors, or they 
may cover up corner studs leaving no 
room for nailing the siding. In these 

CONTINUING THE INSTALLATION

Keep butt joints more 
than one course away 
from top of window.

Add an extra stud if nec-
essary for nailing the ends 
of the planks.

Planking around windows
Notch plank 
around window 
trim and flashing.

Siding gable walls can be challenging, and some of the keys to siding gable walls efficiently are determining the angle 
or pitch of the roof, properly staging materials, and ensuring that the plank lengths are measured accurately. 

To estimate the amount of siding needed to complete a gable end, use the estimating tools located in Appendix C. 

Stage enough material on the pump jacks or scaffolding to complete the gable end, but take care not to overload the 
staging. When possible, a cut table should be located on the pump jacks or scaffolding, which frees up crew members 
to work on other walls.

INSTALLING HARDIEPLANK® SIDING ON GABLE WALLS

places add extra studs as needed.

If corners are trimmed with HardieTrim® 5/4, 4/4 boards, it may be necessary to measure and cut the first pieces of 
siding to make sure the butt joints land on studs.

10.12

Installation of HardiePlank® Lap Siding (cont.)



G
eneral 

Product 
Inform

ation

Tools for 
C

utting and 
Fastening

G
eneral 

Installation
R

equirem
ents

G
eneral 

Fastener 
R

equirem
ents

Finishing and
M

aintenance
H

ardieTrim
®

 B
oards/B

attens
H

ardieW
rap

®

 W
eather B

arrier
H

ardieSoffit ®

 Panels
H

ardiePlank
®

 Lap Siding
H

ardieShingle
®

 Siding
H

ardiePanel ®

 Vertical Siding
ESR

-1844 &
2290 R

eport
Appendix/
G

lossary
W

orking 
Safely

91

HARDIEPLANK® SIDING FASTENER SPECIFICATIONS
The Fastener Specifications table shows fastener options for a variety of different nailing 
substrates. Please refer to the applicable ESR report online (see back page) to determine 
which fastener meets your wind load design criteria.

Tip for fast gable installation

1 Measure, cut and fit lowest 
gable plank using gable angle 
template.

2 Before installing, measure 
down the 11/4 in. overlap at 
the top of the board.

3 Place a plank for the next 
piece on the overlap lines 
and mark the length.

4 Draw the angle, cut and 
repeat the process for the 
next course.

Scrap piece 
of siding

Scrap piece 
of siding held 
against rake 
board

Angle Template

TIP: Stainless steel fasteners are recommended 
when installing James Hardie® products.

wood
studs

bl
in

d 
na

il 16 in o.c.

24 in o.c.

fa
ce

 n
ai

l 16 in o.c.

24 in o.c.

steel
 studs*

bl
in

d 
na

il 16 in o.c.

24 in o.c.

fa
ce

 n
ai

l 16 in o.c.

24 in o.c.

*When blind fastening 9.5 in or wider
 product onto steel studs, use screws. indicates recommended fasteners

6D
common

2
.113 in x .267 in x 2 in

6D 
siding nail

3
.093 in x .222 in. x 2 in

9
No 11ga 1.25 in long

roofing nail

screws

7
Ribbed Bugle-Head No. 8
.323 in x 1.625 in

8
Ribbed Wafer-Head No. 8 (.375 in x 1.25 in)

13
[AGS-100] .100 in x .313 in x 1.5 in

12
[AKN-100] .100 in x .25 in x 1.5 in ET&F

masonry nail14
[ASTM C-90] ASM-144-125 (P/C) 
.30 in  x .14 in  x 1.25 in

4
.091 in. x .221 in. x 1.5 in

4D siding 
nail

Fastener
Substrate

Approved
Fastener

Fastener Type

16
No 11ga 1.75 in long

roofing nail
Direct to Masonry

7/16 in OSB or 
equivalent (face nailed)

To cut planks for the gable: 

1. Tack up a small scrap piece of siding where the first gable course is going. 

2. Hold a second small piece of siding against the eave or rake board. 

3. Trace the angle onto the scrap. 

4. Cut that line and label the scrap as the template for the gable angle. The 
template can then be used to transfer the angle onto the larger pieces for 
cutting and installation. 

5. Periodically check the angle as 
you progress up the wall.

The quickest way to measure 
and cut consecutive courses of 
siding for a gable is to work off 
the previous piece. 

1. Cut and fit the lowest course of 
siding. 

2. Before installing, lay it flat and 
measure down 1¼ in. from the 
top edge of the plank for the 
course overlap. Make a mark 
on both ends.

3. Set a piece of uncut siding on 
top of the first piece, aligning the 
bottom edge with the overlap 
marks. Transfer the length 
directly to the uncut piece. 

4. Draw the gable angle with the 
template, cut the angle and then 
repeat the process for the next 
course. 

Draw 
line 
here

10.13

10.14

8D 
common

5
.113 in  x .260 in  x 2.375 in

13

7

14

8

2

2

16

5

5

93

4

12



92

IMPORTANT: To prevent damage to the drip edge, extra care should be taken when removing planks from the pallet, while handling, and when installing with a lap gauge. Please see 
additional handling requirements on page 4.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:  
• HardiePlank® lap siding can be installed over braced wood or steel studs, 20 gauge (33 mils) minimum to 16 gauge (54 mils) maximum, spaced a maximum of 24 in o.c. or directly to 

minimum 7/16 in thick OSB sheathing. See General Fastening Requirements. Irregularities in framing and sheathing can mirror through the finished application. Correct irregularities 
before installing siding.

• Information on installing James Hardie products over non-nailable substrates (ex: gypsum, foam,etc.) can be located in JH Tech Bulletin 19 at www.jamehardie.com
• A water-resistive barrier is required in accordance with local building code requirements. The water-resistive barrier must be appropriately installed with penetration and junction flashing 

in accordance with local building code requirements. James Hardie will assume no responsibility for water infiltration. James Hardie does manufacture HardieWrap® Weather Barrier, a 
non-woven non-perforated housewrap¹, which complies with building code requirements.

• Adjacent finished grade must slope away from the building in accordance with local building codes - typically a minimum of 6 in. in 
the first 10 ft.. 

• Do not use HardiePlank lap siding in Fascia or Trim applications.
• Do not install James Hardie products, such that they may remain in contact with standing water.
• HardiePlank lap siding may be installed on flat vertical wall applications only.
• For larger projects, including commercial and multi-family projects, where the span of the wall is 

significant in length, the designer and/or architect should take into consideration the coefficient of thermal expansion and 
moisture movement of the product in their design. These values can be found in the Technical Bulletin “Expansion Characteristics 
of James Hardie® Siding Products” at www.jameshardie.com. 

• James Hardie Building Products provides installation /wind load information for buildings with a maximum mean roof height of 85 
feet. For information on installations above 60 feet, please contact JH technical support.

Figure 2

Install planks in 
moderate contact 
at butt joints

stud

Nail 3/8 in. from 
edge of plank

water-
resistive 
barrier

joint 
flashing

Install a 1 1/4 in. starter strip to 
ensure a consistent plank angle

24 in. o.c. max.

Leave appropriate gap between 
planks and trim, then caulk.* 

water-resistive
barrier

plywood or
OSB sheathing

let-in bracing

fastener

water-resistive 
barrier

Double Wall
Construction

Single Wall
Construction

Note: Field painting over caulking may produce a sheen difference when compared to the field painted PrimePlus. *Refer to Caulking section in these instructions. 
¹For additional information on HardieWrap® Weather Barrier, consult James Hardie at 1-866-4Hardie or www.hardiewrap.com

INSTALLATION: JOINT TREATMENT
One or more of the following joint treatment options are 
required by code (as referenced 2009 IRC  R703.10.2)
A. Joint Flashing (James Hardie recommended)
B. Caulking* (Caulking is not recommended 

for ColorPlus for aesthetic reasons as the 
Caulking and ColorPlus will weather differently. 
For the same reason, do not caulk nail heads on 
ColorPlus products.)

C. “H”  jointer cover

Nail line (If nail line is not 
present, place fastener 
between 3/4 in. & 1 in. 
from top of plank)

IMPORTANT: FAILURE TO FOLLOW JAMES HARDIE WRITTEN INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS AND COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE BUILDING CODES MAY VIOLATE LOCAL LAWS, AFFECT 
BUILDING ENVELOPE PERFORMANCE AND MAY AFFECT WARRANTY COVERAGE. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH ALL HEALTH AND SAFETY REGULATIONS WHEN CUTTING AND INSTALLING 
THIS PRODUCT MAY RESULT IN PERSONAL INJURY. BEFORE INSTALLATION, CONFIRM YOU ARE USING THE CORRECT HARDIEZONE® PRODUCT INSTRUCTIONS BY VISITING 
HARDIEZONE.COM OR CALL 1-866-942-7343 (866-9-HARDIE)

Visit jameshardiepros.com for the most recent version.

EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 2019

SELECT CEDARMILL©   |   SMOOTH   |   BEADED CEDARMILL©   |    BEADED SMOOTH  

HardiePlank® Lap Siding 

HS11117  P1/4   09/19

Figure 1

Store flat and keep dry and covered prior to 
installation. Installing siding wet or saturated may 
result in shrinkage at butt joints. Carry planks on 
edge.  Protect edges and corners from breakage. 
James Hardie is not responsible for damage caused 
by improper storage and 
handling of the 
product.

OUTDOORS
1. Position cutting station so that airflow blows dust away from the 
 user and others near the cutting area.
2. Cut using one of the following methods:
 a. Best: Circular saw equipped with a HardieBlade® saw blade 
                      and attached vacuum dust collection system. Shears 
                      (manual, pneumatic or electric) may also be used, not 
                      recommended for products thicker than 7/16 in.
 b. Better: Circular saw equipped with a dust collection feature 
                      (e.g. Roan® saw) and a HardieBlade saw blade.
 c. Good: Circular saw equipped with a HardieBlade saw blade.

INDOORS 
DO NOT grind or cut with a power saw indoors. Cut using shears (manual, pneumatic or 
electric) or the score and snap method, not recommended for products thicker than 7/16 in.

- DO NOT dry sweep dust; use wet dust suppression or vacuum to collect dust.
- For maximum dust reduction, James Hardie recommends using the “Best” cutting 
 practices. Always follow the equipment manufacturer’s instructions for proper operation. 
- For best performance when cutting with a circular saw, James Hardie recommends 
 using HardieBlade® saw blades.
- Go to jameshardiepros.com for additional cutting and dust control recommendations. 

 CUTTING INSTRUCTIONS
STORAGE & HANDLING:

IMPORTANT: The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulates workplace exposure to silica dust.  For construction sites, OSHA has deemed 
that cutting fiber cement with a circular saw having a blade diameter less than 8 inches and connected to a commercially available dust collection system per 
manufacturer’s instructions results in exposures below the OSHA Permissible Exposure Limit (PEL) for respirable crystalline silica, without the need for additional 
respiratory protection.   

If you are unsure about how to comply with OSHA silica dust regulations, consult a qualified industrial hygienist or safety professional, or contact your James 
Hardie technical sales representative for assistance. James Hardie makes no representation or warranty that adopting a particular cutting practice will assure 
your compliance with OSHA rules or other applicable laws and safety requirements.



93

FASTENER REQUIREMENTS*

Figure 3 
Roof to Wall

Figure 4 
Horizontal Flashing

Figure 5  
Kickout Flashing

Figure 6 
Slabs, Path, Steps to Siding

Figure 7 
Deck to Wall

Figure 8 
Ground to Siding

Figure 10 
Sheltered Areas

Figure 9 
Gutter to Siding

Figure 12 
Drip Edge

Figure 13 
Block Penetration

Figure 14 
Valley/Shingle Extension

Figure 11  
Mortar/Masonry

BLIND NAILING
Nails - Wood Framing
• Siding nail (0.09 in. shank x 0.221 in. HD x 2 in. long)
• 11ga. roofing nail (0.121 in. shank x 0.371 in. HD x 1.25 in. long)

Screws - Steel Framing
• Ribbed Wafer-head or equivalent (No. 8 x 1 1/4 in. long
 x 0.375 in. HD) Screws must penetrate 3 threads into metal framing.

Nails - Steel Framing
• ET & F Panelfast® nails or equivalent (0.10 in. shank x 0.313 in. HD x 1-1/2 in. long) 
Nails must penetrate minimum 1/4 in. into metal framing.

OSB minimum 7/16 in.
• Siding nail (0.09 in. shank x 0.215 in. HD x 1-1/2 in. long
• Ribbed Wafer-head or equivalent (No. 8 x 1 5/8 in. long x 0.375 in. HD).

FACE NAILING
Nails - Wood Framing
• 6d (0.113 in. shank x 0.267 in. HD x 2 in. long)
• Siding nail (0.09” shank x 0.221” HD x 2” long)

Screws - Steel Framing
• Ribbed Bugle-head or equivalent (No. 8-18 x 1-5/8 in. long x
 0.323 in. HD) Screws must penetrate 3 threads into metal framing.

Nails - Steel Framing
• ET & F pin or equivalent (0.10 in. shank x 0.25 in. HD x 1-1/2 in. long)
 Nails must penetrate minimum 1/4 in. into metal framing.

OSB minimum 7/16 in.
• Siding nail (0.09 in. shank x 0.221 in. HD x 1-1/2 in. long)

Refer to the applicable ESR report online to determine which fastener meets your wind load design criteria.

Blind Nailing is the preferred method of installation for HardiePlank® lap siding products. Face nailing should only be used where required by code for high wind areas and must not 
be used in conjunction with Blind nailing (Please see JH Tech bulletin 17 for exemption when doing a repair). 

Min. 2 in.

Min. 
2 in.

6 in.

1in.

Z-Flashing

Z-Flashing

Z-Flashing

Min. 2 in.

Min. ¼ in.

Min. ¼ in.
Do not caulk

Min. ¼ in.Min. ½ in.

Z-Flashing

Extend shingles 
at least 1 in. 
out from the 
fascia when 
gutters are 
present

Z-Flashing

L-Flashing

As required 
by IRC code 

min 4 in. x 4 in.

Min. ¼ in.
Do not caulk

CLEARANCE AND FLASHING REQUIREMENTS

*Also see General Fastening Requirements; and when considering alternative fastening options refer to James Hardie's Technical Bulletin USTB 5 - Fastening Tips for HardiePlank Lap Siding.

HardiePlank® Lap Siding 

HS11117  P2/4   09/19



94

Laminate sheet to be removed immediately after installation of each course for ColorPlus® products.

Figure 15

min. 1 1/4 in.
overlap

Minimum overlap
for Both Face

and Blind Nailing

Figure 14

Joint
Flashing 1 1/4” min.

Overlap

3/4”-1”

Face Nail

24”
O.C. max

Water Resistive
Barrier

Stud

Nail Line

1 1/4” min.
Overlap

Blind Nail

24”
O.C. max

Water Resistive
Barrier

Stud

FASTENER REQUIREMENTS continued

HS11117  P3/4   09/19

HardiePlank® Lap Siding 

PNEUMATIC FASTENINGGENERAL FASTENING  REQUIREMENTS
James Hardie products can be hand nailed or fastened with a pneumatic tool. 
Pneumatic fastening is highly recommended.  Set air pressure so that the 
fastener is driven snug with the surface of the siding. A flush mount 
attachment on the pneumatic tool is recommended.  This will help control the 

Fasteners must be corrosion resistant, galvanized, or stainless steel. Electro-galvanized 
are acceptable but may exhibit premature corrosion.   James Hardie recommends the 
use of quality, hot-dipped galvanized nails. James Hardie is not responsible for the 
corrosion resistance of fasteners. Stainless steel fasteners are recommended when 
installing James Hardie® products near the ocean, large bodies of water, or in very 
humid climates.

Manufacturers of ACQ and CA preservative-treated wood recommend spacer materials 
or other physical barriers to prevent direct contact of ACQ or CA preservative-treated 
wood and aluminum products. Fasteners used to attach HardieTrim Tabs to preserva-
tive-treated wood shall be of hot dipped zinc-coated galvanized steel or stainless steel 
and in accordance to 2009 IRC R317.3 or 2009 IBC 2304.9.5

•  Consult applicable product evaluation or listing for correct fasteners type and 
placement to achieve specified design wind loads.

•  NOTE: Published wind loads may not be applicable to all areas where Local Building 
Codes have specific jurisdiction. Consult James Hardie Technical Services if you are 
unsure of applicable compliance documentation.

•  Drive fasteners perpendicular to siding and framing.
•  Fastener heads should fit snug against siding (no air space).
• NOTE: Whenever a structural member is present, HardiePlank should be fastened with 

even spacing to the structural member. The tables allowing direct to OSB or plywood 
should only be used when traditional framing is not available.

CUT EDGE TREATMENT
Caulk, paint or prime all field cut edges. James Hardie touch-up kits are required to 
touch-up ColorPlus products.

CAULKING
For best results use an Elastomeric Joint Sealant complying with ASTM C920 Grade NS, 
Class 25 or higher or a Latex Joint Sealant complying with ASTM C834. Caulking/Sealant 
must be applied in accordance with the caulking/sealant manufacturer’s written instructions. 
Note: some caulking manufacturers do not allow "tooling". 

PAINTING
DO NOT use stain, oil/alkyd base paint, or powder coating on James Hardie® products. Factory-primed James Hardie products must be painted within 180 days of installation. 
100% acrylic topcoats are recommended. Do not paint when wet. For application rates refer to paint manufacturers specifications. Back-rolling is recommended if the siding 
is sprayed.

ALUMINUM

CLIPPED 

STAPLES

HEAD NAILS

FASTENERS
UNDER 
DRIVE

OVER 
DRIVE

SLANT

IF, THEN IF, THEN ADDITIONAL NAIL

WOOD 
FRAME

HAMMER 
FLUSH

REMOVE & 
REPLACE

COUNTERSINK 
& FILL

STEEL 
FRAME

FACE 
NAIL

DO NOT DO NOT DO NOT USE

AL

depth the nail is driven. If setting the nail depth 
proves difficult, choose a setting that under drives 
the nail.  (Drive under driven nails snug with a 
smooth faced hammer - Does not apply for 
installation to steel framing). SNUG FLUSH

Pin-backed corners may be done for aesthetic purposes only. Finish nails are recommended for pin-backs. Headed siding nails are allowed. Place pin-backs 
no closer than 1 in. from plank ends and 3/4 in. from plank edge into min. 3/8 in. wood structural panel. Pin-backs are not a substitute for blind or face nailing.



95

Do not go down the stackADDITIONAL HANDLING REQUIREMENTS Pull from across the stack

Number of 12 ft. planks, does not include waste
COVERAGE CHART/ESTIMATING GUIDE

SQ

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

5 1/4
4 
   
25
50
75

100
125
150
175
200
225
250
275
300
325
350
375
400
425
450
475
500

6 1/4
5

    
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240
260
280
300
320
340
360
380
400

7 1/4
6

    
17
33
50
67
83

100
117
133
150
167
183
200
217
233
250
267
283
300
317
333

7 1/2
6 1/4

16
32
48
64
80
96

112
128
144
160
176
192
208
224
240
256
272
288
304
320

8    
6 3/4

15
30
44
59
74
89

104
119
133
148
163
178
193
207
222
237
252
267
281
296

8 1/4
7 
   
14
29
43
57
71
86

100
114
129
143
157
171
186
200
214
229
243
257
271
286

9 1/4
8 
   
13
25
38
50
63
75
88

100
113
125
138
150
163
175
188
200
213
225
238
250

9 1/2
8 1/4

13
25
38
50
63
75
88

100
113
125
138
150
163
175
188
200
213
225
238
250

12    
10 3/4

9
19
28
37
47
56
65
74
84
93

102
112
121
130
140
149
158
167
177
186

(1 SQ = 100 sq.ft.)

HARDIEPLANK® LAP SIDING WIDTH

PAINTING JAMES HARDIE® SIDING 
AND TRIM PRODUCTS WITH 
COLORPLUS® TECHNOLOGY
When repainting ColorPlus products, James 
Hardie recommends the following regarding 
surface preparation and topcoat application:
• Ensure the surface is clean, dry, and free of any 

dust, dirt, or mildew
• Repriming is normally not necessary
• 100% acrylic topcoats are recommended
• DO NOT use stain, oil/alkyd base paint, or 

powder coating on James Hardie® Products.
• Apply finish coat in accordance with paint 

manufacturers written instructions regarding 
coverage, application methods, and application 
temperature

• DO NOT caulk nail heads when using ColorPlus 
products, refer to the ColorPlus touch-up 
section

IMPORTANT: To prevent damage to the drip edge, extra care should be 
taken when removing planks from the pallet, while handling, and 
when installing with a lap gauge. Planks are interlocked together on 
the pallet, therefore they should be removed from the pallet 
horizontally (side to side) to allow planks to unlock themselves from 
one another.

This coverage chart is meant as a guide. Actual usage is subject to variables such as building design. 
James Hardie does not assume responsibility for over or under ordering of product.

HS11117  P4/4   09/19

Product warranties, safety information and additional installation 
information are available at jameshardiepros.com

© 2019 James Hardie Building Products, Inc. All rights reserved TM, SM and ® 
denote trademarks or registered trademarks of James Hardie Technology Limited.

HardiePlank® Lap Siding 

COLORPLUS® TECHNOLOGY CAULKING, TOUCH-UP & LAMINATE
• Care should be taken when handling and cutting James Hardie ColorPlus® products. During installation use a wet soft cloth or soft brush to gently wipe off any 
   residue or construction dust left on the product, then rinse with a garden hose.
• Touch up nicks, scrapes and nail heads using the ColorPlus® Technology touch-up applicator. Touch-up should be used sparingly.  
   If large areas require touch-up, replace the damaged area with new HardiePlank® lap siding with ColorPlus® Technology.
• Laminate sheet must be removed immediately after installation of each course.
• Terminate non-factory cut edges into trim where possible, and caulk. Color matched caulks are available from your ColorPlus® product dealer.
• Treat all other non-factory cut edges using the ColorPlus Technology edge coaters, available from your ColorPlus product dealer.
Note: James Hardie does not warrant the usage of third party touch-up or paints used as touch-up on James Hardie ColorPlus products.

Problems with appearance or performance arising from use of third party touch-up paints or paints used as touch-up that are not James Hardie touch-up will not be covered 
under the James Hardie ColorPlus Limited Finish Warranty.

       WARNING: This product can expose you to chemicals including respirable crystalline silica, which is known to the State of California to cause cancer. For more information go to P65Warnings.ca.gov. 

RECOGNITION:  In accordance with ICC-ES Evaluation Report ESR-2290, HardiePlank® lap siding is recognized as a suitable alternate to that specified in the 2006, 2009, 2012 & 2015 International Residential Code for One and Two-Family 
Dwellings, and the 2006, 2009, 2012 & 2015 International Building Code. HardiePlank lap siding is also recognized for application in the following: City of Los Angeles Research Report No. 24862, State of Florida Product Approval FL#13192, 
Miami-Dade County Florida NOA No. 17-0406.06, U.S. Dept. of HUD Materials Release 1263f, Texas Department of Insurance Product Evaluation EC-23, City of New York MEA 223-93-M, and California DSA PA-019. These documents should 
also be consulted for additional information concerning the suitability of this product for specific applications.

DANGER: May cause cancer if dust from product is inhaled. Causes damage to lungs and respiratory system through prolonged or repeated inhalation of dust from product. Refer to the current product Safety Data Sheet before use. 
The hazard associated with fiber cement arises from crystalline silica present in the dust generated by activities such as cutting, machining, drilling, routing, sawing, crushing, or otherwise abrading fiber cement, and when cleaning 
up, disposing of or moving the dust. When doing any of these activities in a manner that generates dust you must (1) comply with the OSHA standard for silica dust and/or other applicable law, (2) follow James Hardie cutting 
instructions to reduce or limit the release of dust; (3) warn others in the area to avoid breathing the dust; (4) when using mechanical saw or high speed cutting tools, work outdoors and use dust collection equipment; and (5) if no 
other dust controls are available, wear a dust mask or respirator that meets NIOSH requirements (e.g. N-95 dust mask). During clean-up, use a well maintained vacuum and filter appropriate for capturing fine (respirable) dust or use 
wet clean-up methods - never dry sweep. SI

LI
CA

 W
AR

NI
NG



Style Line® 
Series
Vinyl Windows

Architectural 
Manual



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows 
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.    — 2 

Instructions on how to use this manual:
This document has been designed for easy navigation and to quickly click to the section you 

need. Here’s some important tips on using this document:

• Any item printed in red, will click through to the corresponding item.

• Click to any item in the Table of Contents on page 3. Click on the Milgard logo at the top of 

any page to return to the Table of Contents - FULL MANUAL ONLY.

• From each section’s Quick Links page, click to any Drawing listed.

• From any Drawing page, click the “Go Back to Quick Links” box on the bottom right of the 

page to return to the list of drawings.

• Click on the links on the bottom of the page to go to Revit, SketchUp . PDF and .DWG files. 

Please note that you must have internet access for these links and you will be re-directed 

to the Milgard site.

• This document can also be navigated from Adobe Acrobat Bookmarks.

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed 
at milgard.com or clicking here:

Technical Resources

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Contents — 3 

Contents

COMPONENTS ________________________________ 4
Frame _________________________________4
Nail-On Fin _____________________________4
Weep System ___________________________4
Glazing Material ________________________4
Vent Panel _____________________________4
Weatherstripping _______________________5
Roller Assembly _________________________5
Locking Assembly _______________________5
Screen ________________________________5
Energy Packages ________________________5

OPTIONS _____________________________________ 5
Grids __________________________________5
Glass __________________________________5

Window Hardware _____________________________ 6
Premium Exterior Vinyl Finishes _________________ 7
Full Lifetime Warranty __________________________ 8
Awning Window ______________________________ 9

Configurations _________________________10
Minimum/Maximum Sizes _______________10
Available Frame Styles __________________10
Drawings - Quick Links __________________11
Awning Window _______________________12

Casement Window ___________________________ 22
Configurations _________________________23
Minimum/Maximum Sizes _______________23
Available Frame Styles __________________23
Drawings - Quick Links __________________24
Casement Window _____________________25

Horizontal Sliding Window _____________________ 41
Configurations _________________________42
Minimum/Maximum Sizes _______________42
Available Frame Styles __________________42
Drawings - Quick Links __________________43
Horizontal Sliding Window _______________44
Double Vent Horizontal Sliding Window ____53

Picture and Radius Window ____________________ 54
Configurations _________________________55
Minimum/Maximum Sizes _______________55
Available Frame Styles __________________55
Drawings - Quick Links __________________56
Picture/Radius Window __________________57

Single Hung Window _________________________ 67
Configurations _________________________68
Minimum/Maximum Sizes _______________68
Available Frame Styles __________________68
Drawings - Quick Links __________________69
Single Hung Window ___________________70

Rev.0718



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Series Information — 4 

About Style Line® Series
The Style Line series vinyl (PVC) window blends the 

energy efficiency and low maintenance of vinyl with 

the clean lines and low profile appearance of an 

aluminum window.

The result is a window with maximum glass area. 

Available in white, tan, and clay (select regions), as 

well as premium painted exteriors. The windows 

will maintain their color and shape and can be 

constructed to your exact size specifications, 

subject to review.

COMPONENTS
Frame

Frame components are made from high 

performance polyvinyl chloride, available in White 

or Tan, with Clay available in select regions or 

premium painted upgrade window frames. The 

Style Line series is designed to offer a low profile 

appearance, ideal for contemporary homes or 

whenever maximum glazing area is desired. Mitered 

corners are precision welded resulting in an air and 

water tight seal.

Standard frame depth is 2-7/8”, ideal for both new 

construction and or use as a replacement window.

Nail-On Fin

A 1-1/16” pre-punched nail flange extends around 

the perimeter frame, securing the window in 

rough openings and acting as a part of the flashing 

system. The nailing fin may be removed as needed 

for particular block frame applications. Fin setbacks 

are available in 1-3/8” from outside of frame; also 

in 1” for our SW locations using 3 coat stucco 

applications (not available at all locations).

Weep System

Hollow sill construction and offset weep holes that 

release any accumulated moisture from track and 

help prevent blow back, or water seeping to the 

interior caused by a combination of wind and rain.

Glazing Material

AAMA approved glazing tape adheres glass to the 

fixed panel frame which seals and cushions the 

glass. Rigid vinyl setting blocks are used to support 

the unit above the sill, preventing glass slippage. 

Extruded vinyl glazing (snap-in) bead is applied 

around the exterior edge.

Glass insulating dual glazed panes, 3/4” in overall 

thickness (1” overall on picture frame), are butyl 

sealed for energy efficiency. Specialty glass options 

are available upon request.

Vent Panel

The vent panel has an “L” shaped lip that fully 

interlocks with the vertical meeting rail, adding 

security and preventing air and water penetration. 

Its roller assembly rides on a monorail track for 

easy operation and durability. This raised track in 

the frame sill helps keep the vent panel free from 

interference by foreign particles that may collect in 

the sill.



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Series Information — 5 

Weatherstripping

Silicone-treated water-repellent polypropylene fin 

seal weatherstripping provides a durable, weather 

tight seal. This weatherstripping is installed in an 

integral, continuous keyway around three sides of 

the vent panel and interlock.

Roller Assembly

Self-lubricating, wear resistant, dual nylon rollers 

provide flexible, free-wheeling, smooth and silent 

operation. The adjustable rollers are engineered for 

reduction of friction and elimination of torque on 

the vent frame.

Locking Assembly

A Positive Action™ lock mechanism provides 

security and a tighter seal. The lock engages when 

the window is closed.

Screen

Screen frames are cambered aluminum, reinforced 

with rigid plastic corner clips. Screens come 

standard with matching frame color.

The fiberglass charcoal screen mesh is strong, 

durable and easy to replace. Two plastic pulls 

located on the screen allow you to install from 

inside or outside of house.

Energy Packages

Milgard adheres to ENERGY STAR®  v6 requirements 

to meet or exceed U-Factor and Solar Heat Gain 

Coefficient (SHGC) criteria for all ENERGY STAR® 

zones.

Milgard also offers high energy performance 

options for the ultimate in energy efficiency.  Energy 

efficient windows could include one or more of the 

following features based on your climate.

• SunCoat® or SunCoatMAX®

• EdgeGardMAX®

• Argon or Krypton

• 4th Surface 

For more details on Milgard Energy Efficient 

packages, visit www.milgard.com/learn/energy-

efficiency/energy-efficient-components

To check the energy performance of all Milgard 

windows and doors, use our Energy Calculator at:

milgard.com/energy-calculator

OPTIONS
Grids

Available in 5/8” flat. Color-matched to frame.

1-1/16” sculptured grid available in select markets – 

check with your Milgard representative.

Glass

Refer to glass section. Many more options 

are available. Please check with your Milgard 

Representative.

Caution: The use of petroleum based fuels or solvents 
as release agents in stucco wall installations or glass 
cleaning will chemically attack materials used in 
seals and other components, and voids the Milgard 
Warranty. The use of wax based release agents is 
recommended.

Expanding foam for insulation purposes should not be 
used.

http://www.milgard.com/learn/energy-efficiency/energy-efficient-components
http://www.milgard.com/learn/energy-efficiency/energy-efficient-components
https://www.milgard.com/professionals/energy-calculator


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows 
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Series Information — 6 

Window Hardware

Single Hung and Horizontal Slider

Positive Action™ Lock – Closes and locks window securely in one action. 

Casement and Awning

Standard Handle with Sash Lock



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows 
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Series Information — 7 

Premium Exterior Vinyl Finishes

Bronze Espresso Classic Brown Tweed

White Tan

Silver Fog Sand

Premium - White interior only

Standard - Matching interior

Ivory

Clay

(available in select regions)



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows 
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Series Information — 8 

Full Lifetime Warranty
At Milgard, we build our windows and doors to last. With the 

dedication to quality that we put into building the best windows in 

the business, it wouldn’t make sense to back them with anything but 

the best warranty in the business. That’s why we back every properly 

installed window and door for as long as the homeowner owns their 

home–including parts and labor.   

It’s why you can be sure you won’t find any windows better than 

Milgard. 

For complete warranty details, visit milgard.com.

Why Milgard?

Quality 

Milgard offers award-winning windows and patio doors built for long-lasting comfort. For over 50 years, 

industry experts have consistently recognized Milgard as a trusted brand. By producing our vinyl and 

fiberglass frame materials in-house, we can more closely monitor for quality control. Milgard windows and 

patio doors stand up, while standing out.

Experience

Since 1962, Milgard Windows & Doors has designed and assembled superior, top quality windows and patio 

doors, backed with a Full Lifetime Warranty. Milgard engineers are known for their industry-leading designs 

using patented technologies. Whatever your project calls for, Milgard has the right product that can beautifully 

reflect your vision. From new construction to home remodeling, all Milgard windows and doors are custom 

made to your exact specifications. 

Service

We serve the Western U.S. and Canada with a dozen full-service facilities and customer care centers. Our belief 

is that by being close to our customers, we can provide them better service. 

https://www.milgard.com/warranty/full-lifetime-warranty
https://www.milgard.com/warranty/full-lifetime-warranty


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 67 

Single Hung Window

The Style Line® Series vinyl (PVC) Single Hung 

window blends the energy efficiency and low 

maintenance of vinyl with clean lines and a 

narrow profile.

The result is a window with maximum glass 

area. Available in white, tan, and clay (select 

regions), as well as premium painted exteriors. 

The windows will maintain their color and 

shape and can be constructed to your exact size 

specifications.

Please also see:

Components

Options

Hardware

Premium Exterior Vinyl Finishes

Full Lifetime Warranty



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 68 

Single Hung Window
Configurations

Not all frame styles available at all Milgard locations. 
Contact your Milgard  Representative for more information.

Minimum/Maximum Sizes
Single-Hung

 – Min 1020  Max 4066

Double Single-Hung
 – Min 2020  Max 7066

Triple Single-Hung
 – Min 3020  Max 9066

Double Single-Hung with Center Lite
 – Min 3020  Max 9066

Gable Top Single Hung
 – Min 1026  Max 4066

Minimum egress is 3050 with a 30” bar set or
2660 with a 36” bar set.
SH vent set: 12, 15, 18, 21, 24, 27, 30, 33 or 36.

Available Frame Styles
 1-3/8” Nail Fin Setback
 1” Nail Fin Setback with Stucco Key
 1” Nail Fin Setback with J-Channel
 Contour Z-bar
 Flat Z-bar
 Block Frame (no fin)

NOTE: For engineering approval contact your Milgard representative for 
any configuration over 40 square feet. Each Milgard Manufacturing plant 
reserves the right to alter or change sizes and configurations according to 
location capabilities. Ask your Milgard rep about specialty applications. 
Windows over 40 square feet shipped open for field glazing. Varies by 
location.

Gable Top Single Hung

Double Single Hung/Center Lite

Triple Single Hung

Single Hung Double Single Hung



Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 69 

Drawings - Quick Links

Single Hung Window
70—1-3/8” Fin Setback

71—1-” Fin Setback with Stucco Key

72—1-3/8-” Fin Setback with Stucco Key

73—1” Fin Setback with J-channel

74—1-1/2” Contour Z-bar

75—1-1/2” Flat Z-bar

76—Double Single Hung - 1-3/8” Fin Setback

77—Double Single Hung above 2 Lites - 1-3/8” Fin 
Setback

78—Double Single Hung below 2 Lites - 1-3/8” Fin 
Setback

79—Single Hung above - Block Frame

80—True Divide - Block Frame

81—Triple Single Hung - Block Frame

82—Single Single Hung - Z-bar frame

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 70 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
1-3/8” Fin Setback

Cross Section Drawing
StyleLine Single Hung Window
1 3/8" Fin Set Back

CAD File Scale
NTS

View
Horizontal & Vertical

File Name
6210-01SH

Units
Inch

More Technical Documents can be found at milgard.com/professionals
Due to continual research and development, details may be changed at any time.  ©2013 Milgard Mfg.

HEAD & SILL JAMBS

SINGLE HUNG
SERIES 6210

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 71 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
1-” Fin Setback with Stucco Key

Cross Section Drawing
StyleLine Single Hung Window
1"  Fin Set Back W/ Stucco Key

CAD File Scale
NTS

View
Horizontal & Vertical

File Name
6230-01SH

Units
Inch

More Technical Documents can be found at milgard.com/professionals
Due to continual research and development, details may be changed at any time.  ©2013 Milgard Mfg.

HEAD & SILL JAMBS

SINGLE HUNG
SERIES 6230

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 72 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
1-3/8-” Fin Setback with Stucco Key

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 73 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
1” Fin Setback with J-channel

Cross Section Drawing
StyleLine Single Hung Window
1" Fin Set Back W/ "J" Channel

CAD File Scale
NTS

View
Horizontal & Vertical

File Name
6230J-01SH

Units
Inch

More Technical Documents can be found at milgard.com/professionals
Due to continual research and development, details may be changed at any time.  ©2013 Milgard Mfg.

HEAD & SILL JAMBS

SINGLE HUNG
SERIES 6230J

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 74 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
1-1/2” Contour Z-bar

Cross Section Drawing
StyleLine Single Hung Window
1 1/2"  Contour Z-Bar

CAD File Scale
NTS

View
Horizontal & Vertical

File Name
6270-01SH

Units
Inch

More Technical Documents can be found at milgard.com/professionals
Due to continual research and development, details may be changed at any time.  ©2013 Milgard Mfg.

HEAD & SILL JAMBS

SINGLE HUNG
SERIES 6270

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 75 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
1-1/2” Flat Z-bar

Cross Section Drawing
StyleLine Single Hung Window
1 1/2" Flat Z-Bar

CAD File Scale
NTS

View
Horizontal & Vertical

File Name
6270-02SH

Units
Inch

More Technical Documents can be found at milgard.com/professionals
Due to continual research and development, details may be changed at any time.  ©2013 Milgard Mfg.

HEAD & SILL JAMBS

SINGLE HUNG
SERIES 6270

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 76 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
Double Single Hung - 1-3/8” Fin Setback

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 77 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
Double Single Hung above 2 Lites - 1-3/8” Fin Setback

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 78 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
Double Single Hung below 2 Lites - 1-3/8” Fin Setback

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 79 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
Single Hung above - Block Frame

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 80 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
True Divide - Block Frame

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 81 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
Triple Single Hung - Block Frame

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


Style Line® Series Vinyl Windows
Architectural Manual 

© Milgard Manufacturing, Inc.  Single Hung Window — 82 

Go back to Quick Links

Revit, SketchUp, .PDF and .DWG files can be accessed at 
milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources

Single Hung Window
Single Single Hung - Z-bar frame

https://www.milgard.com/professionals/technical-resources


5.0 ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW OUTSIDE THE 
HISTORICAL DISTRICT 

5.1   Existing Residential Neighborhoods 

Outside the Historical District, in recognition of the diversity of architectural styles that 
developed in Nevada City and contribute to its character, the City zoning regulations also define 
as being important to Nevada City and require permits to protect those homes and neighborhoods 
that are known as being of the pre-World War II era, i.e. pre-1942.  Architectural review permits 
are required for construction or renovation of all buildings and structures in existing 
neighborhoods – including new construction of or additions to residences or outbuildings; 
alteration of the exterior appearance; and any removal, demolition or razing and replacing of any 
part of any such building or structure – to make sure that such projects conform to the ‘context of 
the neighborhood’ and are generally compatible with the style of architecture therein respecting 
changes that over time may have acquired significance in their own right.   

Distinctive stylistic features and examples of skilled craftsmanship of both Mother Lode and pre-
WW II buildings and structures should be treated with sensitivity.  Removal or alteration of 
historical material or distinctive features should be avoided wherever possible and distinguishing 
original qualities or character of the building, structure or site and environment should not be 
destroyed.  Alterations to older homes should match the existing style, materials and details. 
Synthetic materials are discouraged.  Like-for-like replacements and repairs are recommended. 

New projects, additions to homes and renovations, as well as construction of new outbuildings, 
must be generally compatible with Nevada City’s style of architecture.  Such projects should 
conform to the “context of the neighborhood” previously discussed in these Guidelines 

Nevada City Architecture or Mother Lode type of architecture is defined as “that type of 
architecture generally used in the Mother Lode region of the state of California during the period 
from 1849 and 1900. Such type of architecture involves the use of wood and brick as primary 
materials, and is generally characterized by such design features, among others, as gabled or 
shed roofs, tall and narrow windows and doors, dormer windows, iron or wooden shutters, 
balconies, wooden awnings and ornamental scroll work.  

The determination of whether a building conforms with the Mother Lode type of architecture 
shall include all factors which affect the external appearance of the building, including, without 
limitation, architectural elevations, building materials, colors, finish, lighting, ornamental 
devices and signs.  

35 

Table of Contents Link



Features typical of Mother Lode era architecture such as: 

• Roof Pitches.  Main roofs steeply peaked (6:12 to 12:12) with overhangs and gable
ends.
Hipped roofs in the appropriate architectural context are allowed. (Victorian homes
were often very vertical in appearance and the relationship of the size of the house
to the roof should be considered).

6:12 pitch 8:12 pitch        8:12 with gabled dormer 

Roof Pitch and Height Limit 
The Zoning Ordinance provides the height limit for the various zoning districts, with 
the residential zones having a height limit of 35 feet.  The following heights are 
recommended: 

Roof Pitch Stories Height Limit 

12:12 1 28' 

12:12 2 35' 

  6:12 1 20' 

  6:12 2 28' 

Front, rear and side elevations should be similar in height and size to surrounding 
homes 

• Siding for Existing Homes.  Painted wood horizontal siding, board and batten.
Cement fiber board, vinyl siding, and other synthetic siding (such as T-111 siding)
is discouraged in older neighborhoods particularly when the neighborhood is in
close proximity to pre-1942 homes or if the home itself is pre-1942 or exhibits a
style which is not complemented by these types of siding.

• Materials, New Homes.  Materials on new homes will be reviewed against the
context of the neighborhood.  If modern materials are used, they should match
historic materials in appearance.

36 



• Materials, Older Homes and Structures.   Alterations to older homes and structures
should match existing, historic materials. Synthetic materials with no historic basis
are discouraged on both existing older home additions and renovations.  Removal or
alteration of any historic material or distinctive architectural features should be
avoided when possible

• Covered porches and entries.  Such entries and porches usually have shallower roof
slopes. 

Zion Street 
4-plex

• Trim, railings, and details should have a historic basis and fit the style of the
existing home or new structure.

• Roofing material.  Asphalt shingles and metal roofing in muted non-glare colors
such as tans, blacks, browns, and greens have historically been approved on new
homes and additions.  The use of corrugated metal has also been approved.

• Exterior Colors.  There is no color review or approval required for change in colors
of a home outside the Historical District. However, the following guidelines are
recommended:
• Select colors that are similar to the tones found in the area and on adjacent

buildings
• Muted, soft colors on large wall expanses are encouraged
• The use of bright, modern colors and intense white color are discouraged.
• Use subdued colors as the primary color and brighter, contrasting trim when

appropriate
• Incorporate the color from primary building materials, such as stone, brick and

37 

Table of Contents Link



hardwood, as the base colors for new development 

Alexander St 

• Windows.  Typical windows include multi-pane, vertical, and bay windows.
Wood windows and true divided lights are generally required of additions,
renovations and newly constructed homes in older neighborhoods though
existing window types may be duplicated.

Bay Window 
Sacramento St 

38 

Table of Contents Link



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wood Clad Window Vinyl Clad Window 

Discussion on Wood Windows 
The Design Guidelines have, in the past, preferred the use of historically correct wood 
windows. The design of windows is continuously evolving as they become more efficient and 
maintenance free.  Wood windows require maintenance throughout their life time, mainly 
painting. Because of these maintenance issues, the wood window is not as popular as the 
same window with “cladding” on the wood exposed to the weather. The cladding replaces the 
layers of paint on the wood window. The cladding can be several materials with aluminum and 
vinyl being the most popular. The cladding protects the wood and usually never needs painting. 
This is good for the homeowner and the environment. 

There are two important points to be made. First, this discussion is not relative to a vinyl or 
aluminum window but is for discussion of a clad wood window. It is difficult to make a solid vinyl 
or aluminum window match the proportions of the true wood window. Secondly, referring to the 
two images below of an actual wood window and the same window with white colored cladding, 
it is easy to see that the proportions and dimensions as basically identical. 

There also are windows made from fiberglass for strength and low maintenance. The Planning 
Commission will consider the fact that if the windows have the same proportions of a wood 
window, they can possibly be considered as meeting the Cityʼs requirements. 

39 

Table of Contents Link



Below are photograph of homes that meet the definition of “Mother 
Lode Architecture” (Classic 19th Century) 

Miner’s Cabin on Cabin Street

Miners C 

Victorian on Prospect Street 

40 

Table of Contents Link



Below are examples of pre-WW II homes 20th Century to 1942 

North Pine Street, about 1935 

Adams Street, about 1930 

Coyote Street, about 1938 

41 

Table of Contents Link



Below are examples of 1940’s to 1970’s homes 

Brock Road, about 
1948 

Gold Tunnel Road, 1950’s 

Lindley Avenue, about 1960 

42 

Table of Contents Link



Turpentine Drive, 1970 (part of Steger Tract Subdivision) 

Below are a ‘before and after’ photograph of a renovation consistent 
with Mother Lode Architecture. 

Before (2000) After (2014) 

This home on Sacramento Street, built in 1891, was granted approval to remodel the home by adding 
conditioned living space to the attic area of the home.  The home contains 1,348 sq ft and the project 
added 1,082 sq ft of conditioned area.  Interior work to the home was done and like-for-like windows 
were replaced.  The new conditioned area became living space and the roof was raised by 4 feet.  New 
dormers and windows were added to this area and materials matched those of the existing home and 
those in the immediate area.  Railings and steps were replaced. 

43 

Table of Contents Link



. 

Winter Street, new home built in 
1990 (replacing original due to 
fire) 

Additions. Nevada City is concerned about retaining a mix of housing sizes for affordable 
housing and historic preservation. As a result, major additions should not overwhelm the original 
structure. The integrity of the original structure should be retained.   Additions to homes that are 
greater than 25% of the floor area are considered by the Planning Commission.  Additions less 
than 25% with materials matching the home can be approved by staff; however the City Planner 
always has the ability to send an application to the Planning Commission for approval. 

436 Washington Street – 25% addition to west side of home by extending kitchen and 
adding bay window (2013) 

44 

Table of Contents Link



Garages and Accessory Structures, Second Dwelling Units 

Accessory building means a “detached subordinate building located on the same premises as the 
main building or buildings, the use of which is customarily incidental to that of the main building 
or to the use of the land.  Said accessory building shall not be used as sleeping or housekeeping 
quarters.”  However, the City’s second dwelling unit ordinance does encourage second dwelling 
units above new garages. 

Accessory buildings such as guest houses, garages, barns, and workshops should be designed to 
fit the character of the neighborhood and with adherence to all of the appropriate guidelines in 
this section. Accessory structures should complement the main building’s architecture (design, 
materials, color, etc.). 

Existing accessory structures often contribute to the significance of the property and should be 
retained.  Repair and restoration of such structures is desired rather than removal.  If the structure 
is pre-WWII or of special historic or architectural value, it will not be permitted to be 
demolished without approval of a Demolition Permit which requires a finding by the Planning 
Commission that the building cannot be reasonably repaired or restored.  (See Attach #11.2) 

Accessory buildings can be detached from the main residence or attached (or may be connected 
by a breezeway).  Accessory buildings need to comply with all requirements as the main 
residence including setbacks and undergo architectural review by the Planning Commission.   

Exceptions to setbacks and design review are small accessory structures (such as tool sheds) that 
are less than 160 square feet in size; such structures are placed in the rear half of the lot and 
cannot exceed 30% of the rear yard area.  Staff can assist with the placement of such structures 
to ensure compliance with the zoning ordinance. 

Garage patterns in the existing neighborhood should be respected. For example, if rear detached 
garages are the norm, it is a good idea for any new garages to follow that form. Where single 
garage doors are common, new two car garages should use two similar doors instead of one 
larger double door. Regardless, the garage should not be the dominant feature of a front 
elevation.  

Garage behind home – Clay Street Garage, Alexander Street 

45 

Table of Contents Link



Second Dwelling Units 
The City adopted Ordinance 2008-14, finding that such dwelling units are an important form of 
housing that contributes to the character and diversity of housing opportunities in Nevada City. 
Such a unit is defined as an attached (640 square feet maximum) or detached unit (800 square 
feet) that is smaller and secondary to the main residence.  Second dwelling units can also be 
constructed above a new garage (640 square feet maximum).  A use permit can be submitted by 
the owner to the Planning Commission for any deviation in unit size. 

Second dwelling units are permitted in all zoning districts that allow single family dwellings as a 
permitted use.  The City encourages residential second dwelling units and has imported standards 
that enable homeowners to create such units to be compatible, as much as possible, with the 
neighborhood. 

Second dwelling units are approved at staff level by the City Planner with submittal of an 
application, site plan and any required fees.  Units are subject to standards such as: 

1. Must meet building and fire codes
2. Payment of public water and sewer fees, along with AB1600 Mitigation Fees (can be

waived with a 30-year deed restriction ensuring affordable rent at “low” or “very low”
income levels as established by the State of California.

3. Each unit shall have one spate off street parking space (in addition to two spaces required
for main residence).

4. One of the residences shall be occupied by the owner of the property.
5. Lot coverage of all buildings cannot exceed 50 percent.
6. Materials, colors and architecture shall be similar to the primary unit.
7. Lighting shall not spill onto neighboring lots.
8. Entrances shall be screened from neighboring properties.

:

American Hill Rd. - 2nd unit under construction            Chief Kelly Dr. - 2nd unit above garage

46 

Table of Contents Link



5.2 New Residential Neighborhoods 

New homes in new subdivisions or previously undeveloped neighborhoods must exhibit high 
quality design which is compatible and sympathetic to Nevada City's Mother Lode architecture 
incorporating traditional materials, building lines, features, and landscaping wherever possible. 
For example:  

Features typical of Mother Lode era architecture: 

• Roofs may vary in their design and detailing which is more flexible than the review
standard in older neighborhoods, but they should be steeply pitched (6:12 to 12:12).

• Wall material - Siding on new homes in new neighborhoods should be high quality
and at least reminiscent of traditional materials. Painted siding, cement fiber siding,
shingles, and traditionally surfaced stucco are examples or preferred materials
though it must be reviewed for furthering the intent of achieving a continuation of
Mother Lode architecture. T-111 type siding, vinyl, and other synthetic siding are
strongly discouraged.

• Covered porches and entries should be used wherever possible to continue a Nevada
City architectural tradition.

• Windows should match the style of the house. Multi-pane, vertical, and bay
windows are encouraged with variations to fit the style of the house.

• Trim, railing, and details should fit the style of the new house. The intent should be
to add texture, shadowing, contrast, and interest which are reminiscent of the City's
older homes.

• Roofing material such as treated wood shingles, asphalt shingles, and metal roofing
in muted non-glare colors such as tans, blacks, browns, greens and grays are desired.

• Colors. Colors are not reviewed outside the Historic District. However, the
following guidelines are recommended:

• Select colors that are similar to the tones found in the area and on adjacent
buildings

• Muted, soft colors on large wall expanses are encouraged

• The use of bright, modern colors and intense white color are discouraged.

• Use subdued colors as the primary color and brighter, contrasting trim when
appropriate

• Incorporate the color from primary building materials, such as stone, brick and
hardwood, as the base colors for new development

47 

Table of Contents Link



Approved Elevations for varied housing styles within a subdivision off Gracie Road 

Lost Hill Drive 
Residences 
(subdivision approved 
in 2000) 

Nevada City Cottages, 
multi-   family project 
built in 2005 

48 

Table of Contents Link



                               City of Nevada City 

 
City Hall  ·  317 Broad Street  ·  Nevada City, California 95959  ·  (530) 265-2496 

 

 
 
TO:     Planning Commission 

FROM:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020 

APPLICANT:  Nevada County Historical Society, represented by Linda Jack 

RE: Plaque Proposal to Honor Ellen Clark Sargent in Calanan Park (Continued from the 
December 19, 2019 meeting) 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Historic Plaque Application 
2. Revised Plaque Text Exhibit 

3. Picture of existing granite form proposed to 
hold the plaque 

 
BACKGROUND: At the November 21, 2019 meeting, the Historical Society presented a plaque proposal  to 
place a plaque in an existing granite form at Calanan Park. The plaque would honor Ellen Clark Sargent’s 
contribution to the women’s suffrage movement. The Commission approved the style and location of the plaque 
with a condition that reference to Aaron Sargent be omitted from the plaque text. At the December 19, 2019 
meeting, they returned with a revised option to include a photograph of Ellen Sargent and also asked that the 
Commission reconsider the condition to omit Aaron Sargent from being referenced in the text. At the December 
meeting the Commission voted to continue the item to a future meeting with direction to the applicant to add 
language that strengthens understanding of Ellen Sargent’s role in the suffrage movement. 
 
PLAQUE DESIGN: The plaque text has been updated to better highlight Ellen Sargent’s role in the eventual 
passage of the 19th Amendment to the US Constitution.  The plaque will be similar in design style to the one 
mounted on 309 Broad Street (Golden Era), but will feature text honoring Sargent: 
 

Plaque at 309 Broad St. Proposed Plaque Text 

 
 

RECOMMEDATION ACTION: Make a motion to approve placement of the plaque as presented, and 
as may be modified or conditioned by the Planning Commission. 







 

 

ELLEN CLARK SARGENT 
       (1826-1911) 
 
       Prominent Suffragist 

 
 
 

 
Ellen Clark Sargent, a native of Massachusetts, arrived in Ne-
vada City in 1852.  A leader in the fight for women’s right to vote, 
she founded the Nevada County Woman’s Suffrage Association in 
1869. She was the President of the California Woman Suffrage As-
sociation and Treasurer of the National Woman Suffrage Associa-
tion. Her tireless work resulted in California women winning the 
right to vote in 1911. Her campaign for national women’s suffrage 
led to the introduction in 1878 of the 19th amendment to the U.S. 
Constitution by her husband, U.S. Senator A. A. Sargent. After 
many hard-fought battles by the Women’s Suffrage movement, the 
19th amendment was finally enacted into law on August 20, 1920. 

       

Landmark registered  _____ __, 2020 by the 
 Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission NEV 20-0? 

Plaque dedicated 2020 by  
The Grand Parlor of the Native Daughters of the Golden West,  

The Captain John Oldham Chapter, National Society  
Daughters of the American Revolution, and  

The Nevada County Historical Society 




	Closswalk Options PC SR1-16-2020wATT.pdf
	CrossWalk Examples.pdf
	Nevada City1
	old town Citrus Heights
	old town Roseville
	old town folsom
	old town folsom2
	old town GrassValley
	old town GrassValley2
	old town Sac1
	old town Sac2
	old town Truckee
	old town Truckee2


	224 Church Remodel PCSR1-16-2020wATT.pdf
	224 CHURCH_20.0106 planning submittal.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1.1 SITE PLAN_224 CHURCH-A1.1
	A3.1 LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN_224 CHURCH-A3.1
	A3.2 UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN_224 CHURCH-A3.2
	A3.3 DOOR & WINDOW SCHEDULE_224 CHURCH-A3.3
	A6.1-A6.2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS_224 CHURCH-A6.1
	A6.1-A6.2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS_224 CHURCH-A6.2






